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Financial Highlights Bi##E =

Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2020

¢ Revenue

e Profit before income tax

e Shareholders’

fund as at 31 March 2020

* Basic earnings per share

Revenue (HK$’000)

Operating profit

(HK$'000)

Profit before income tax (HK$’000)
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Interim dividend per share declared and paid (HK cents) 2 SRR XI5 R EIRE GBL)

Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents)

Net asset value

(HK$'000)
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Profit attributable
to shareholders (HK$'M)
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Chairman’s Statement FE#HE=E

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2020.

This year was characterised by a continuing downturn of Hong
Kong economy due to the heightened political and economic
pressures on global and local levels. The trade war between the
United States (the US) and the Peoples’ Republic of China (the
PRC) shows no sign of ending. The global pandemic of the
coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) has caused a crisis on
health, economy and politics in the world that has created further
tension between the US and the PRC. Social unrest has been
on-going since last summer in Hong Kong coupled with the
adverse business sentiment and consumer confidence brought
by COVID-19, Hong Kong’s economy shranked 8.9% in the first
quarter of 2020. It was the steepest contraction for any single
quarter in decades.

As indicated in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Hong
Kong business needs to adapt to and build resilience in response
to the economic recession and weak demand. Thanks to the
support from our dedicated staff for their swift responses at times
of business disruptions, we have managed to maintain the safety
and health in our operations and our ability to respond to
customers’ requests as before. We are also thankful for the trust
that landlords have on us and their support which has rendered
some temporary relief in this challenging time.

Having established our business in Hong Kong for over 40 years
ago, our Group’s business has always been highly related to the
housing market in Hong Kong, which is subject to the outlook of
citizens and the global financial market in general. The
experience that we gained from the past will help us reposition in
this challenging time. It is expected that the demand for home
fittings will go in line with housing units, as a necessity, that will
remain stable despite market turbulences. We will stay focused
on our product mix to ensure what we deliver goes beyond
customers’ expectation. Our years of experience in the market
and our supportive customers would sharpen our strategic skill
that would strengthen our ability to adapt and grow during the
time of uncertainty.
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We have kept and will continue to stay vigilant to market
fluctuations and maintain the disciplined approach in operation in
light of the highly uncertain environment. Our flexibility will
continue to facilitate the optimal operation in changing business
conditions in order to control cost pressures. The current and
quick ratios were 2.4 (2019: 2.8) and 1.5 (2019: 1.5) respectively.
We shall continue to closely observe market trends, capitalise on
our strengths, and adjust our strategies accordingly.

The management would like to thank you for your support and
trust, and also express our appreciation for the loyalty and efforts
of our dedicated staff. Their support and contributions have been
indispensable for the Group’s past development; and its
prosperity for years to come.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

24 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 EsSmEL D T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing, wholesale,
retail and installation of architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

A business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators during
the year are provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis. In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies and performance and an account of the Group’s key
relationships with its employees, customers, suppliers and others
that have a significant impact on the Group and on which the
Group’s success depends are provided in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Annual Report 2020.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
set out in the Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) are provided in the Corporate Governance Report
of the Annual Report 2020. Save as disclosed herein, during the
year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has complied with the
requirements under the Listing Rule, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Cayman Islands Companies Law.

In the latter half of 2019, months of protests and the United
States (the US)-PRC trade war had pushed Hong Kong into a
recession for the first time in a decade. According to the
Government statistics, the economy of Hong Kong shrank by 8.9
per cent on a year-on-year basis in the first quarter of 2020, after
a 3 per cent decline in the previous quarter (last quarter of 2019).
The on-going Hong Kong social unrest and the US-PRC dispute
making any prospect for resolving the issues any time soon are
dim. Now together with the coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
outbreak threatens to further derail the Hong Kong economy
even further.
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REVENUE REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s total turnover
was HK$510.4 million, representing a decrease of 5.4% as

compared with the previous year.

Revenue by business segment

Architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom
collections and others

Kitchen collection and
furniture

Revenue from external customers

Iy %5 o1 B8

BE-Z-ZF=F=+—HILEE FE@HEE
EZA51048BEB T BEFHAD5.4%

RERSBE D 2 W

As a percentage
of sales (%)

HINE Pl a HEEREE DL (%)
31 March 31 March
=A=+-—H =HA=+-—H
2020 2019 Change 2020 2019
—B-EF Z—E-hF By —T-TF —T-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000 (%)
FHERT FET
BERD - FERME
REAM
389,393 390,722 (0.3) 76.3 72.4
BEEZRERER
121,043 149,036 (18.8) 23.7 27.6
510,436 539,758 (5.4) 100.0 100.0
REBRITE 5 2 BFIRED

Profitability by business segment

Architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom
collections and others

Kitchen collection and
furniture

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment slightly decreased by 0.3% to
HK$389.4 million (2019: HK$390.7 million) as compared to the
previous year. The progress of construction projects remained
stable despite minor disruption in the supply chain due to
COVID-19. During the year, we supplied for projects such as

Reportable segment gross profit

Gross profit
margin (%)

WERZ 2 BEF 51K (%)
2020 2019  Change 2020 2019
—g-¥F =—T-NE BH —T-BF —T-hE
HK$’000  HK$000 (%)
T it
BERS - EARE
RE A
172,119 164,833 4.4 44.2 42.2
BERBREM
34,611 45,971 (24.7) 28.6 30.8
206,730 210,804 (1.9) 40.5 39.1
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 EsSmEL D T

REVENUE REVIEW (conTD)

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment
decreased by 18.8% to HK$121.0 million (2019: HK$149.0
million) as compared to the previous year. The weakening wealth
effects lowered demands for high-end kitchen cabinets for
residential projects. The outbreak of COVID-19, and its
subsequent social distancing and pessimistic consumption
sentiment, caused a hit to our performance on premium kitchen
and furniture retail. During the year, we supplied for projects such
as Grand Homm.

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$206.7
million (2019: HK$210.8 million), representing a decrease of 1.9%
from the previous year. The overall gross profit margin slightly
increased to 40.5% from 39.1%.

The Group’s operating profit was HK$22.1 million (2019: HK$20.3
million), representing an increase of 9.1% from the prior year.
The amount of administrative expenses and distribution costs
decreased by 2.8% to HK$184.1 million (2019: HK$189.5 million).
In the previous year, there was a onetime flagship showroom
relocation which had contributed to an increase in administrative
expenses and distribution costs; no similar relocation happened
this year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to expand its business in Hong Kong and
the PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy.
The current ratio and quick ratio are 2.4 (2019: 2.8) and 1.5
(2019: 1.5), respectively. Cash and cash equivalents
approximated HK$83.4 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$66.4 million).

Inventories slightly decreased to HK$144.9 million (2019:
HK$169.5 million). The trade, retention and other receivables
increased to HK$160.0 million (2019: HK$138.6 million), while
the trade and other payables decreased to HK$34.5 million
(2019: HK$38.7 million).

As at 31 March 2020, the gearing ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group is 1.1%. Gearing ratio was not applicable as
at 31 March 2019 as the Group had a net cash position. The
interest-bearing borrowings of the Group decreased to HK$10.7
million (2019: HK$36.6 million) as at 31 March 2020.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (conTD)

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro. During the
year, the Group entered into certain forward contracts to buy
Euro for settlement of purchases. The management will continue
to monitor the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced
any difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due. As
at 31 March 2020, performance bonds of approximately HK$31.7
million (2019: HK$20.0 million) have been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts. The Group has no other
material financial commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2020.

Event after the Date of Statement of Financial Position

(a) Impact of Coronavirus Disease 2019 outbreak (COVID-19
outbreak)
After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be
implemented across many countries. The pandemic has
already caused disruptions to the daily operations of the
Group and this may potentially affect the Group’s business
and financial performance in 2020. As of the date of this
report, the overall financial effect cannot be reliably and fully
estimated and are subject to further evaluation. The Group
will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group.

(b) Major transaction
On 29 May 2020, the Group has entered into a preliminary
agreement of purchasing a property located in Hong Kong
at a consideration of HK$68,500,000. On 23 June 2020, the
Group has entered into a formal agreement of purchasing
that property. As at the date of this report, the transaction
has not yet been completed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 EsSmEL D T

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The trade dispute between the US and the PRC and the fallout
from this year’s global COVID-19 pandemic has manifested itself
in the form of economic conflict between the two countries. The
pandemic has further complicated the already difficult PRC and
the US relationship, the US’s threat of removing Hong Kong from
its special trade status will create uncertainty as to Hong Kong’s
role as a global hub of trade, commerce, and finance*. On the
whole, the prolonged tension between the two powers is not good
for Hong Kong. To stay ahead of the storm, Hong Kong business
will inevitably have to reinvent itself and to adjust to the business
environment around. We will prepare for the downturns and
structuring our business to be more resilient in the face of
economic recession and weak demand.

The on-going dispute between the US and the PRC, the social
unrest in Hong Kong together with the global pandemic of
COVID-19 have caused severe disruption of business sentiment
and consumer confidence and weakened the domestic demand
in the first half-year of 2020. The economic recession deepened
as the real GDP contracted sharply in the first quarter from a year
earlier. Undoubtedly, the different levels of lockdown measures
adopted in other countries are expected to affect their respective
economic performances that in turn, will affect the Hong Kong
economy this year. With the massive relief packages rolling out
by the Hong Kong Government aiming at stabilising the
employment and stimulating local demand, it might slow down
the downturn of Hong Kong economy. How it may affect our
business is yet to be seen.

The demand for housing units in Hong Kong might be considered
to remain stable despite external and local market turbulences.
According to the Government statistics, the private flat supply will
go up gradually. Having considered market trends as impacted
by the above factors, we, as usual, will continue to capitalise our
strengths in product ranges and relationship with well-established
developers, and respond to the ever-changing market
environment by adjusting our strategies accordingly.

* US President ended Hong Kong'’s preferential treatment by an executive order
on 15 July 2020
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Directors’ Report ZEZ#H%

The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 162 to 163.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 96 to
97.

Appropriations of profits and movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in notes
28 and 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board declared and paid an interim dividend of HK1 cent per
share for the six months ended 30 September 2019 (for the six
months ended 30 September 2018: HK1 cent per share), totalling
HK$6,006,000 (for the six months ended 30 September 2018:
HK$6,006,000).

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 8 September
2020, a final dividend of HK0.5 cent per share for the year ended
31 March 2020 (for the year ended 31 March 2019: HK1.5 cents
per share) (the “Final Dividend”), totalling HK$3,003,000 (for the
year ended 31 March 2019: HK$9,009,000).

If it is duly approved by the members at the AGM, the Final
Dividend will be distributed to members, whose names appear on
the principal or branch register of members of the Company in
the Cayman lIslands or Hong Kong respectively (collectively the
“Register of Members”) as at the close of business on 16
September 2020. The payment will be made on 14 October 2020.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed as
follows:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 3 September
2020 to 8 September 2020, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the AGM,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 September 2020.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for
the Final Dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 15 September 2020 to 16 September
2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the Final
Dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with Tricor Abacus Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 14 September 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2020,
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands,
amounted to HK$49,483,000 (2019: HK$64,305,000). Under
Section 34 of the Companies Law (2020 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution shall be paid to
shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless the
Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
PURPOSES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company indirectly held full interest in
an office property for investment purpose. The property is located
at 19/F, First Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. The property is held on long lease. Further
details of the properties held for investment purposes are set out
in the note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2020
are set out in the note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$27,600.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive Directors*
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong?*

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.p. (the former Independent Non-executive
Director) passed away on 31 August 2019
# appointed on 29 November 2019

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and/or
during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of
this report are kept at the Head Office in Hong Kong and
available for inspection during business hours.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 63, is the Chairman of the
Company. He is a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. TSE possesses over 30 years of experience in trading of
building materials. He is responsible for the planning of the
Group’s overall strategies and the overall management of the
Group.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 69, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Company on 21 June 2012. He established his
reputation in the industry and has a wealth of experience in brand
building, new product development and structuring the
management of the Group. Mr. TSE is the cousin of Mr. TSE Sun
Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the Company, and the father
of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the Deputy Managing Director of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Executive Directors (cont’d)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 61, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of
twenty-three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses
over 30 years of experience in trading of building materials and is
responsible for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also
assists in the strategic planning and management of the Group.
He is the brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the chairman of the
Board.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 52, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2001. He is a director of one subsidiary of the
Company. He is responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU graduated
from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist College) in
1992 with a Bachelor’'s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 40, is the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 8
September 2008 and is a director of sixteen subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. TSE graduated from University of Toronto with a
Bachelor's Degree of Commerce. He is responsible for internal
information technology development, the launching of the
furniture business and the marketing of products distributed by
the Group. Mr. TSE is a nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the
Managing Director of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 71, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972
with Honours Bachelor’'s Degree of Social Science in Economics.
He was appointed as a Director and general manager of
Hongkong Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong &
Yaumatei Ferry Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has been actively
involved in garment industry and IT business for the last few
years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont’d)

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 27 September 2004. He obtained a
Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’'s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a
Bachelor Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent
non-executive director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
He is also a director of Jacob Walery Limited specialising in
corporate consultancy and training since 1 March 2007 while he
is also teaching with various universities and professional
institutes.

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong, aged 75, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 29 November 2019. He
is a Chartered engineer, Chartered arbitrator, and a Barrister-at-
Law in Hong Kong and in England and Wales. He received his
Bachelor of Science in Engineering, Master of Science in
Engineering, and Doctor of Philosophy degrees from the
University of Hong Kong in 1966, 1968 and 1982 respectively; a
Professional Engineer degree from the Columbia University in
the City of New York in 1976; a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1980; a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of London
in 1987; and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and Dispute
Resolution degree from the City University of Hong Kong in 1994.
Dr. LUK was a past President of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers (2000—2001) and a member of the Building Ordinance
Appeal Tribunal in Hong Kong (1995-2010). Dr. Luk is a fellow of
the Institution of Structural Engineers, the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Chartered
Institution of Arbitrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Arbitrators. Currently, he is an adjunct professor of the
Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong, and
Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics in the People’s
Republic of China, an Honorary Fellow of HKU School of
Professional and Continuing Education and the chairman of
Asian Construction Management Association.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Senior management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 63, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU possesses over 30 years of experience in the building
materials industry and is responsible for project related sales and
marketing activities.

Mr. LEE Ka Ming, Clement, aged 45, joined the Group in 1994.
Mr. LEE is a deputy general manager of project sales division.
He possesses over 20 years of experience in building materials
industry and is responsible for project sales.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts with Directors as disclosed herein,
no contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of 12
months. They are subject to re-election by shareholders at
annual general meetings and at least once every three years on
a rotation basis in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. No Director has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. LAU Shiu Sun and Mr.
WAN Sze Chung will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

On 29 November 2019, Dr. LUK Wang Kwong was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. He shall
retire at the forthcoming general meeting in accordance with
Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association, and being
eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, Mr. WAN Sze Chung and Dr. LUK
Wang Kwong are Independent Non-executive Directors and were
appointed for a fixed term of one year.

Y
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DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence
pursuant to the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that all of its Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s
business which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts.
An insurance cover is in place to protect Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against
the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 September 2010. The
Share Option Scheme expired on 8 September 2015. The
Company has not operated any share option schemes during the
year ended 31 March 2020. As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2020, there was no outstanding share option of the Company.

In addition, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during or
subsisted at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no other transaction, arrangement or contract that
is significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company’s subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in
which a Director of the Company and the Director’'s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and at the end of the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief
executives of the company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OTHER
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, short positions, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OTHER
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (CONT’D)

Directors’ interests

Personal
Director BE interest

BARER
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) & 3% 4.4 (M3E1) -
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) 5 {2 & 4 (M3t 2) -
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) 53758 54 (Fit£E3) -
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) 558 5 4 (Fit2E2) -
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun BB RE -
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BELLE -
Mr. WAN Sze Chung RERRESE -
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong ECEEL -

Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the
beneficiaries.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star
Group Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and
their family are the beneficiaries.

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy
Times Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief
executives or their associates had, as at 31 March 2020, any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) had
any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
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Equity Percentage
Corporate derivatives of share
interest  (share options) Total  capital issued
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DRER (k) st AR
37,197,294 - 37,197,294 6.19%
108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%
43,659,542 - 43,659,542 7.27%
108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2020, the following persons (not being Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Name of shareholder

RERERE

Happy Voice Limited

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at
31 March 2020.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Negotiator Consultants Limited

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020 in respect of lease payments of approximately
HK$4,032,000 paid to Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”)
constitutes a continuing connected party transaction. NCL is a
subsidiary of a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr.
TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon
Kit, Kevin have beneficial interests. The determination of the
lease payments followed the pricing policies and guidelines set
out in the continuing connected transaction announcement dated
22 March 2018.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and have confirmed
that these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
D terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONT'D)

Negotiator Consultants Limited (cont’d)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter to the Board containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group as above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s business
is managed by an experienced management team who have a
close involvement in the day-to-day running of the business,
which ensures that the Group is prepared for, and can react
quickly by adapting its business to, changes in the operating
environment. Further discussions on the Group’s principal risks
and uncertainties are provided throughout this annual report,
particularly in “Chairman’s Statement” (pages 4 to 5),
“Management Discussion and Analysis” (pages 6 to 10), “Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems” (pages 49 to 54),
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”’ (pages 62 to 87)
and “Financial Risk Management” (pages 128 to 136). The above
discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on pages 31 to 33 in
Corporate Governance Report, as far as the Board and
management are aware, the Group has complied with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, the SFO and the Cayman
Islands Companies Law.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details
of which are set out on pages 74 to 80.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, our workforce was recorded at 152
employees (2019: 161). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$75,151,000 (2019:
HK$77,589,000).

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and performance
of the Group and individual staff members (including the
Directors). The remuneration policy and remuneration packages
of the Executive Directors and members of the senior
management of the Group are considered by the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with its Terms of Reference. Details of
Directors’ emoluments during the year are set out on page 148.

Senior management remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2020, remuneration paid to
members of the senior management is as follows:

N BOR

RIEZZEF=A=1+—8 FEEETIAZAE152
ZB(ZEBE-NF 161R) BEIRN(BEESH
B ) A&75,151,00058 T (=& — L& : 77,589,000 /&
JT) °

FEEEMSEEERE TR AKERERET
(BRES)2XE  ZREFMEX - HFHEES
EREABEEERIAKENTESRSRERE
ABZHFMBRRFHNEE NFEESHFMWFE
BN 148H ©

BAREE A B
BE-T-BF=A=+-ALFE ZHFER
ERABZHHMT :

Number

Remuneration bands S B 4E B of individual
A

HK$0-HK$1,000,000 0% 7T % 1,000,000 7T 2

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases KRB

The largest supplier BAAER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate TR ET
Sales SHEH

The largest customer BREF

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFH

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

TEHREBLRER

RAREREP - A EE BRI RE S 56 R 3
REBEEHLLMT :

18%
63%

13%
29%

EE REZBEEBRBEAIRBESHAEELRA
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use
of energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 70 to
73.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 182.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
the date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) are set out in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 6 to 10 and pages 62 to 87 respectively of the Annual
Report. The business review forms part of this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to
maintaining its high standard of corporate governance, and
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance
measures. The Company believes that accountability and
reporting system with high transparency for the Company’s
operation has been in place. Disclosures could also be made
timely and accurately. At the same time, the rights of
shareholders can be treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an efficient and responsible board of
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with
high qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) maintain good
corporate governance practices and have comprehensive internal
control and risk management systems, so as to cope with the
Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) published by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles of
good corporate governance and provides two levels of
recommendations:

(a) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided that
they give considered reasons for non-compliance; and

recommended best practices, with which issuers are
encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company has complied with all the code provisions in the
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, except for the
following:

Under the code provision C.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
is directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for the review of its effectiveness. The
Board will continue to review, at least annually, this arrangement
going forward in light of the evolving needs of the Group.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1), 3.10A, 3.21
AND 3.25 OF LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 5
September 2019, following the passing away of Mr. LEUNG
Kwong Kin, J.p. (the former Independent Non-executive Director)
on 31 August 2019, the Company did not meet the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules.
With the appointment of Dr. LUK Wang Kwong as Independent
Non-executive Director and changes in the composition of Board
committees on 29 November 2019, the Company is now in
compliance with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the
Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE OF MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules sets out a required standard against which Directors must
measure their conduct regarding transactions in securities of their
listed companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as
its own code of conduct regarding Director’s securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Directors confirmed compliance with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of
publication of this Annual Report, the Directors of the Company
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors*
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong*

* Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.p. (the former Independent Non-executive
Director) passed away on 31 August 2019
# appointed on 29 November 2019

Bsr EHRAISES.10(1) 15 ~ 553.10A K

% 3.21 1§ K% 56 3.251%

HAAARBBRAE—Z-AFAAEANDEME
B RAE rmr (AIBALFHTES)N=_Z—H
FNA=Z+—HEtHE  KATREFELHRA
%£3.10(1) 1% ~ 5 3.10AfK  E3.21{R R FE3.251K 1Y
BE -RZB-NFE+-—AZt+hhBEEEERER
TEZIABYUHITESURESZESHRE
By AATRERFE LHRAIFEI10(1) 15K « 553.10A
{5 ~ 58 3.21 {5 R 58 3.25 (K HIRE ©

=]

BTRER G 2 BESTH

D

EHRAIMBETAELETRITAESETRESZS
ZBEFA(EESRDIIRESREERB LD
RAHRFEHAUNGEEAGRT ZR/AERE - KR
AERMBETR  ERESETESRIZET
R - ANBACEAEESFHELNER  2RES
TR RERAFERN-—HEBTRETRRHA 2R

g o

EEg

NEBE-E-_EF=-A=+—-BLEFEREEATF
WTIHAE  AATESHIWOT :

HTES

HEERE (FE)
HEEELE (BIELE)
B Kk (EFREE)
HEGREL (BIEBREE)
BIEH AL

BN EHITES"
BELE
BEREL
EREEL

Rk BAFH: (IBYFHTES)N=B—LFNA
=t+—HEt N\
#  REEB-AFt-A-thEREE o

>
»

BHTRRERATD-E-BFER 33



34

Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD (ConT'D)

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to page 22 in Directors’ Report. In
accordance to the Articles of Association of the Company,
Directors who fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall be subject
to re-election at the first general meeting; and at each annual
general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years. Formal letters of appointment have been
issued to all Directors setting out all key terms and conditions of
their respective appointment. Each newly appointed Director will
also be issued with a letter of appointment.

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 19 to 22.

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Board takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management of
the Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that a
framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable
risks to be assessed and managed, setting the Company’s
values and standards, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

When the Board delegates management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has formalised
functions reserved to the Board and the management
respectively; and the Board reviews those arrangements
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate to the
Company’s needs.

W)
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THE BOARD (conTD)

The management and staff of the Company ensure the
successful implementation of the strategies, business directions
and policies as determined by the Board. In doing so, they must
apply business principles and ethics, which are consistent with
those expected by the Board and Shareholders and other
stakeholders.

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently. They also
take the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise. They
scrutinise the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance
reporting. They make a positive contribution to and independent
judgement on the development of the Company’s strategy,
policies, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards or conduct through independent,
constructive and informed comments. The Independent Non-
executive Directors possess appropriate professional
qualification. Among them, some possess expertise in accounting
or financial management. Each Independent Non-executive
Director has also submitted an annual written confirmation to the
Company confirming his independence. All Independent Non-
executive Directors are engaged by contract every year and are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

Except as disclosed in the Annual Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs and have actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies, business directions and policies of
the Group. Throughout the year, the Company held 4 regular and
1 non-regular Board meetings, and 1 general meeting. To ensure
that Directors could obtain all related information to make an
informed decision and to perform their duties and responsibilities,
documents for the Board meeting were supplied to Directors for
their consideration before the meeting according to the
regulations set out in the Listing Rules and code provisions of the
Code.

The attendance of board meetings and the general meeting
during the year is set out on page 55.
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THE BOARD (conTD) EEgwm

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all ZEZgCIERH  E2RESVERELSER
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board AZEEZSEHEZ2EZRAN EESREESEH

meetings. At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular
Board meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and
relevant materials are sent, in full, to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of board
meeting. For all other Board meetings, Directors are given as
much notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Management provides the Board and board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear,
complete and reliable and enables Directors to make informed
decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their
duties and responsibilities as directors. Management provides
adequate explanations and information to the Board to enable
Directors to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before them for approval. In addition, the
Board and each Director have separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management. All Directors have free
access to board papers and related materials. Queries raised by
Directors are provided with a prompt and full response. Minutes
of each Board meeting and board committee meeting are kept by
the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are
available for inspection by any Director.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and the decisions reached. Draft and final versions of
minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meeting is
held.

All Directors have free access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that good information
flow within the Board, Board policies, Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover, all
Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances in the furtherance of their duties at the
Company’s expense. The Company provides separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist them
perform their duties.
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THE BOARD (conTD)

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in
a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction. Directors’ concerned must abstain
from voting on any Board resolution and will not be counted in
the quorum.

The Company has arranged an insurance cover for directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal action against them arising
from corporate activities.

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for
the appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they are familiar
with the Company’s operations and business, his responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies. In addition, an orderly succession for
appointments is maintained to ensure high standard of corporate
governance of the Company.

The Company encourages Directors and the Senior Management
to participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge, skills and understanding of the
business and markets in which the Group operates. The
Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, as well as information related to the
Group’s business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices and
enable them to discharge duties properly. This has involved
various forms of activities including attending seminars, reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business, director’s duties
and responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is
set out on page 55.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles
and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat,
Henry, Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the
Board. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible
for the Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director
has been clearly defined and the written terms of reference have
been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:

(a) Providing leadership for the Board;
(b) Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues
in a timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and
approves the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s
behalf, taking into account any matters proposed by other
Directors for inclusion in the agenda;

() Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with Shareholders and that views
of Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;
(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place
and procedures are established;

(h) Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an
opportunity to express his views at Board meetings,
ensuring that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company, encouraging Directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion
of issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect
Board consensus;

44

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

TEERME

IERESHKE
EEEIRRAESALE GAREMS  [HER

KB | EENLETRBMSET AR MTHRARD B
MEBREES AR  YARBETEALES - EE
SIENNEALEEERESSEE MESL
RIEHHMELEAEER QR EREE -ESS
FTREESEALECBEITICEWMRAELRES
EBEEE o

EEEIRCBERE:

BHEST

BREZEESEE
BIE ;

ENSESEERAERLZ

BRZVESERFWEIRH - EMHE - BH - =

BRASZEN

RRESSHARLEF  BTHE  LE
WFEEERBERSBIE ;

H'J‘ u-J'

BRABDMERREFLAAZERBEESS
SRR UEBHMESREZNABTREZME
fA%EIR ;

() BREDSESRUBRSANERRKE I
BRBRR2BRUEZIREESS

BRADBDRIRFEXERERRER |

SRERESENIRAESESERATES
KEEESZERTERER  BREZSU
RAFBRENRTE  BRABFTEARRNES
BRER  URHERREFNR  BRES
EARAREADERRESSHE



CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (conTD)

(i

1),

Holding meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of other Directors; and

Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non-
executive Directors, and building constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His
responsibilities are as follows:

(@)
(b)

()

Providing leadership for the management;

Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s
strategies;

Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board;

Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary
to enable the Board to monitor the performance of
management;

Leading the management of the Company’s relationships
with its stakeholders;

Putting in place programmes for management development
and succession;

Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper internal controls and systems as well as
disclosure controls and procedures; and

Discharging such duties and authorities as may be
delegated in writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES EEEEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director. Following the passing
away of Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.p. (the former Independent
Non-executive Director) on 31 August 2019, the Remuneration
Committee had two members and thus did not meet the
requirement under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. With the
appointment of Mr. WAN Sze Chung as member of the
Remuneration Committee on 29 November 2019, the Company
is in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. WONG Wabh,
Dominic.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is
clearly defined and posted on the Company’s website.

The roles and function of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

(a) To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management. This should include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTD)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)
(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration for Non-executive Directors;

(e) To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(f) To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

(h) To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

(i) To consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive about
their remuneration proposals for Executive Directors. The
committee should have access to professional advice if
necessary; and

(j). To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its
discussion results and recommendations after each meeting and
is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is
authorised by the Board to obtain independent legal or other
professional advice.

The remuneration of members of the senior management is set
out on page 29.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met twice to
review the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Committee also reviewed and
determined the policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors;
assessed their performance and approved the terms of service
contracts of Directors. No Director had participated in the
determination of his or her own remuneration. Discussion results
and recommendations of the meetings have been proposed to
the Board for its review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTD)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings
during the year is set out on page 55. The remuneration policy of
the Group is set out on page 29.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Following the passing away of Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.p. (the
former Independent Non-executive Director) on 31 August 2019,
there was a vacancy in the position of chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Audit Committee had two members and thus
did not meet the requirement under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. With the appointment of Mr. WAN Sze Chung as chairman
and Dr. LUK Wang Kwong as member of the Audit Committee on
29 November 2019, the Company is in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and function of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(a) To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) To review and monitor the external auditor's independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;
(c) To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part
of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The audit
committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed,;

44

(d)

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTD)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(e)

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the
interim and final audits, and any matters the auditor may
wish to discuss (in the absence of management where
necessary);

To review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control system
with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control
system. This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings, and review the statements concerning risk
management and internal control to be included in the
annual report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure
coordination between the internal and external auditors, to
review and approve the annual internal audit plan, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

To review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTD)

Audit Committee (cont’d)
(m) To review the Company’s statement on internal control

(n)

(0)

(P)

systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor's management
letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in the code provision
of Appendix 14 C.3 of the Listing Rules; and

To review arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate
governance functions as below:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2019, discussed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems with management, and reviewed the annual budget for
audit fees. In addition, the Audit Committee considered and
reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2020 on
24 June 2020, and proposed to the Board for their approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTD)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies (including the Inside
Information Policy) and practices, reviewed and monitored the
Company’s code of conduct and compliance manual, reviewed
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee met
twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its
review, and related recommendations were adopted by the
Board. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain
independent legal or other professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings
during the year is set out on page 55.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors
were aware of any uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. As such, the Directors have
prepared the Company’s financial statements on a going concern
basis. Reporting responsibilities of external auditors on the
financial statements are set out in “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
(pages 88 to 95).
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTD)

Auditor’s Remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2020, the following auditor’s
remuneration has been incurred by the Company:

PricewaterhouseCoopers EORKEGTHESEHEAT
— Audit services — BIRE

— Non-audit services — F BRI

Total st

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the fees to
PricewaterhouseCoopers, amounting to HK$2,165,000 were
primarily for audit services and those for non-audit services
amounted to HK$185,000, 8.5% of the total fees. The non-audit
services provided by the auditor was tax compliance services.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012.
It is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director. The Nomination Committee
is chaired by Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic.

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a) Review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) Identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTD)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional
advice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met twice to review
the Board and Senior Management of the Company. The
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, reviewed the board diversity policy, reviewed the time and
contribution from Directors, assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, made recommendation on
the appointment and reappointment of Directors at the 2020 AGM
and discussed the succession planning for the Company’s Board
and Senior Management. In addition, the Committee reviewed
the nomination policy (including procedures, process and criteria
to select and recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion
results and recommendations have been proposed to the Board
for its review.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings
during the year is set out on page 55.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The members of Board possess diverse
competences, spanning business management, advisory and
monitoring, accounting and financial management, legal, brand
building, sales and marketing and I.T. development. The profile
of Directors is set out in Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management on pages 19 to 21.

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience. The
Nomination Committee of the Company shall review the Board
Diversity Policy as appropriate and make recommendations on
any proposed revisions to the Board.

Board appointments will be based on objective criteria having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

At present, there are 3 Independent Non-executive Directors in
the Board, accounting for over 1/3 of the total numbers of the
Board. They bring them with diverse academic and professional
qualifications and experience to the Board.
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BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is listed on the main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding.

The Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of architectural
builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The objective of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) is to become one of the leading quality suppliers of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections
and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value of the
Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting products
that commensurate with their lifestyles and quality services.
Founded over four decades ago, the Group has established
reputation and gained trust from major contractors, property
developers and dealers. The Group also runs retail outlets and
showrooms to display products.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate return to shareholders
through:

(a) Leveraging our core competencies in products and services
to generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,
customers and suppliers; and

(c) Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is
also responsible for the risk management and internal control
system and reviewing their effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Process of risk management and internal control systems

Risk ~
Assessment
B Bz FP AL
The Process of
’ Internal
Control
Monitoring 7 2 B 12

il

2

Information &

Communication

SEVES

Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and
procedures that the Group implements to provide reasonable
assurance that:

The Group financial reports are reliable;

(@)

The Group operations are effective and efficient; and

(b)
(©)

The Group activities comply with applicable laws and
regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (conTD)

Process of risk management and internal control systems
(cont’d)

The key components of the Group’s internal control structure are
as follows:

B EE N ANEBELIE RS &
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Control Environment

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control
begins with an effective tone at the top of the organisation.
The reason of this is so important that management’s attitude
regarding monitoring will determine the selection of
evaluators and the approach to monitoring. The tone set by
the management will influence the way staff members
conduct monitoring activities. In turn, the Board will influence
and guide how management applies and conducts
monitoring.
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Control Activities
The internal control of the Group includes the following areas:

. Integrity and ethics

J Commitment to competence

. Board of Directors and audit committee participation
J Management philosophy and operating style

e Organisational structure

J Assignment of authority and responsibility

J Human resource policies and practices
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (conTD)

Process of risk management and internal control systems
(cont’d)
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Information and Communication
The Group’s risk management structure is shown as below:

Input
N

Board of Directors
E5g
Ultimate responsible body

BB ERE
Vision
B l

ESG Workgroup
REMEREAIFA

1 Outcome
0 2%

1 Results, risk
#X - mk

Governance body
ERHE

Strategy 1T Results, risk
- R AR

Management
EHEE
Decision-making body
RE

BB

Department /
Functional Heads
WP/ BREEE

Risk owners

mBREaEEA

The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls
and compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control system. It comprises members from
various functions of the Group so as to provide holistic
coverage of the Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for
managing risk during their day-to-day operations. They
operate in accordance with the clearly defined procedures,
responsibilities and limits of authority. They identify and
assess risk associated with their operations and report to the
management for review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (conTD)

Process of risk management and internal control systems
(cont’d)
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Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More
serious deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of
management and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.

Bz

BRSENERB L EERRER - ZEF
AEREMAMEZEARIT D RE —HEARTR
BRETREE o I ZE 15BN AR EE
EREEAMTEZEYMLEEEBENTEA
EEE BABRENTREENEESEER LT
BERRE/RTESS -

Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place
are relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A
monitoring process must be capable of addressing the need
for revisions in the design of controls based on changing risk.
Effective internal control systems must be capable of
containing risks at an acceptable level to ensure effective and
efficient operations on an on-going basis. Thus, continuous
feeding of information and communication help monitoring
the changes and reaction.

By the use of the modern |.T. system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely
information, the Board and management team can:

(a) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording the
sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with I.T. capabilities and
risks, and recognise the opportunities that the I.T.
system provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors
and irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (conTD)

Process of risk management and internal control systems
(cont’d)

Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks
associated with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for
determining what risks need to be controlled and the controls
required to manage them. Our head of risk management has
periodic meetings with directors and the management team to
oversee and discuss the proper operating style with each other.
Directors and the management team will then make decision and
delegate to each department for execution. Through daily
communication and information gathered, directors and
management team will be able to monitor the daily operation and
risks that might occur, thus be able to prevent or minimise them.
It also makes sure operations are in compliance with laws, rules,
and regulations. At the same time, each department’s missions
and goals are achieved. The management confirmed that the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company were effective.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing
Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission. The Company has included
in its staff handbook a strict prohibition on the unauthorised use
of confidential information including Inside Information (as defined
under the SFO) in order to make sure appropriate handling and
dissemination of Inside Information is in place.

Review of risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 March 2020

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees the
management on the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls and
compliance controls.

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse
range of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews
of actual performance, reviewing of performance reports,
checking information processing in transactions, performing
physical controls, analysing performance indicators and dividing
and segregating duties amongst different people. These can help
the Group ensure proper internal control is in place across
departments/divisions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (conTD)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (cont’d)

During the year, the Board through the Audit Committee, holds
an annual review to consider and discuss the risk management
and internal control systems (including but not limited to, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function). The Board received a confirmation
from the ESG Workgroup that the resources relating to ESG
performance and reporting were considered adequate. During
the year, the Company did not have an internal audit department;
details of which are set out on page 31. Based on the review, the
Board considers that there is no significant change in the nature
and extent of risks and the Company’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment since the
last annual review. The Board was not aware of any significant
issues that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements, the
Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE AND
TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of Directors at Board and Board committee
meetings, the Annual General Meeting and training records for
the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows™:
Remuneration
Director ! Board  Committee
g ¥FHzEEg
Executive Directors ITES
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry HEELE 505
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert HEREE 5/5
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony HMELE 505
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin HIEGREE 5/5
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun 2Tk E 5/5 22
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BELLE 5/5 212
Mr. WAN Sze Chung RBRAE 5/5
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong® BREELY 17
Notes:
A: Attending seminars, conference and/or forums

B: Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates

*

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.p. (the former Independent Non-executive
Director) passed away on 31 August 2019
# appointed on 29 November 2019

COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During the
year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors. During the year,
meeting agenda and accompanying board papers were provided
at least 3 days before the date of the Board or committee
meetings. Furthermore, all Directors have access to the Company
Secretary to ensure that good information flow within the Board,
Board policies, Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

It is the Company’s policies to have open communication and
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a
key means to enhance corporate governance standard.
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based on
the information disclosed and provide feedback to the Company.
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with
its financial conditions, are disclosed in this report and the
Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk.

During the year, the Company has adopted new articles of
association which, among other things, allows the Company to
send and supply corporate communications to Shareholders by
electronic means pursuant to the Listing Rules. All registered
shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual general
meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post or by electronic
means (as appropriate). The notice of the Meeting contains an
agenda, resolutions proposed and a proxy form. All shareholders,
whose shares are registered in the register of members, are
entitled to attend the Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend
the Meeting can appoint their proxies or the chairman of the
meeting as their proxies by completing the proxy form enclosed
with the notice of the meeting and returning it to the Company’s
share registrar. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all
votes of shareholders at the Meeting will be taken by poll.
Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice
of the meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to
the shareholders. The procedures shall be read out at the
Meeting by the chairman of the meeting so as to make sure
shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. In addition, separate resolutions for
substantially separated issues shall be proposed to the Meeting
for the approval of shareholders.

An annual general meeting is considered as an annual significant
event of the Company. Annual general meetings provide a
precious opportunity for shareholders and the Board to exchange
constructive opinions. All Directors shall attend the annual
general meeting. Apart from attending the annual general
meeting, the Chairman of the Board shall arrange the chairmen
of each Board Committee to attend and answer questions at the
annual general meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor's
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conTD)

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’” Communication Policy
aiming to provide the Company’s shareholders, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are able to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them
and the investment community to engage actively with the
Company. For the purpose of this Policy, reference to the
investment community is intended to include the Company’s
potential investors as well as analysis reporting and analysis the
Company’s performance.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
written enquiries and concerns by post to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company at
its Head Office as follows:

The Company Secretary
16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

The Company has established a number of channels for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders and the
investment community, and will regularly review this Policy to
ensure its effectiveness as follows:

(a) Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community mainly through the Company’s
financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general
meetings and other general meetings that may be
convened, as well as by making available all corporate
communications on the Company’s website.

(b) Effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders and the investment community shall be
ensured at all times.

Any question regarding this Policy shall be directed to the
Company Secretary.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conTD)

Shareholders’ Enquiries

(a) Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar.

(b) Shareholders and the investment community may at any

reasonable time make a request for the Company’s

information to the extent such information is publicly

available.

(c) Shareholders and the investment community shall be

provided with designated contacts, e-mail addresses and

enquiry lines of the Company in order to enable them to

make any query in respect of the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out when considering any payment of a dividend, the
Board shall take into account of (i) the profitability of the Group
for the financial year; (ii) the Group’s general financial condition
supporting its normal operations; (iii) the Group’s actual and
expected business performance; (iv) the Group’s overall results
of operation, financial performance and liquidity position; (v) the
Group’s expected capital commitments, future cash requirements
and future business development plans and prospects such as
market conditions; (vi) retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and each of the members of the Group;
(vii) the general economic conditions, business cycles of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group; and (viii) any other factors that the Board
considers relevant and appropriate. The Board will continually
review the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles
of Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

2. Shareholders have right to receive corporate
communications issued by the Company.
3. Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus Limited

(“Tricor”) may notify us from time to time through Tricor if
they wish to receive our corporate communications.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (conTD)

4.

Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of
the rules including the voting procedures that govern
general meetings.

Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules
prescribed by the Stock Exchange from time to time,
shareholders have right to participate and vote in general
meetings. Any shareholder not attending a general meeting
can give proxy to vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are
sent to shareholders of the Company together with the
notice of meeting.

Shareholders have right to raise questions at general
meetings.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company may request the Board, through the
Company Secretary, to convene an extraordinary general
meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken by
poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held.
A shareholder who is a corporation will be present in person
if a duly authorised representative of such shareholder is
present at the meeting. A shareholder present in person or
by proxy who is entitled to more than one vote does not
have to use all his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes
the same way. The result of the poll shall be deemed to be
a resolution of the meeting. After the closure of a general
meeting, the poll results will be published on the Company’s
website at www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated
before the general meetings.
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10. The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted
and recorded. Voting results are verified by independent
scrutineers and announced in a timely manner after the
closure of general meeting and posted on the Company’s

and HKEXnews websites.

11. Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as
required by the Listing Rules.

Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director

The general meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue
for shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge a notice, signed by the shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed), and a notice signed by
the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected
(together the “Notices”) at the Head Office or at the Registration
Office provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such Notices are given, shall be at least seven days and
that (if the Notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgement of such Notices shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to
put forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to put forward a new resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, in both
English and Chinese, are available on the Company’s website
at www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk. There was no significant change to the
Memorandum of Association of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2020. Following the passing of relevant special
resolution by Shareholders on 10 September 2019, the Company
adopted new articles of association to bring the Company’s
articles of association in line with relevant requirements of
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Listing Rules.
Details of the changes made under such exercise are set out on
the circular of the Company dated 26 July 2019.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set
out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. It provides an annual summary of the Group’s
environmental and social performance for the financial year
ended 31 March 2020. For corporate governance, please refer to
pages 31 to 61.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the
Group’s performance in the environmental and social
(employment and labour practices, operating practices and
community involvement) aspects and covers the Group’s
operations in Hong Kong. The Group will expand the scope of
disclosures when the data collection system is better established.
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The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:
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Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong
Kong only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our

‘!Q operations, contributing over 90% of our Group’s turnover in the financial
}; year ended 31 March 2020.
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ASSURANCE

This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has delegated the environmental and social
performance to an ESG workgroup (“ESG Workgroup”) which
comprises of a director of the Company. The Workgroup
translates the Board’s vision into execution, gathers and analyses
data collected from various departments and reports back to the
Board; the Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability performance and ESG reporting. Details of how the
Board and ESG Workgroup collaborate are set out on page 65.
This Report was approved by the Board on 24 June 2020.

VISION

Sustainability is a core part of values of E. Bon. The Group
envisions a community being knowledgeable and responsible in
their daily life and inspires others to do the same; and therefore
commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the
interests of diverse stakeholders.

STRATEGY

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision
enables us to take account of our responsibility to the
environment and society in general. ESG-related risks, such as
occupational health and safety, product responsibility and
customer satisfaction, are identified and considered important by
the Board. The Group, through the ESG Workgroup, seeks to
formulate policies and approaches in order to manage these
ESG-related risks.
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POLICY

At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations
that create sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic,
environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed
a dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations
towards the best practice in areas such as business growth,
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices and community involvement. The
sustainability policy commits the Group to:

. Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
sustainability issues;

o Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations;

. Implementing policies relating to business growth,
environmental protection, workplace quality, operating
practices and community involvement;

o Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues;

U Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain;

o Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and

. Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance.
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APPROACH

Implementation and Governance Structure

The Group adopts both top-down and bottom-up approaches to
manage sustainability risks. The implementation and governance
structure allows the Group to communicate concerns and
solutions related to sustainability risks effectively.

Outcome
R R

Input

"’ A

Board of Directors

Ultimate responsible

meEdEEN
Vision Result risk
me | @
ESG Workgroup
REGCGREAIFMA
BAEM
Stra Result / Risk
xn | PR

Management

EER

Decision-maki
O
Policy 1 T

Result (e.g. KPI) / Risk
BE

ARSI B R AE R BB

Department /

Functional Heads

BPE/BMEEE

Risk owners

BRrAaRA

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability performance and ESG reporting. The Board sets
out the sustainability vision of the Group and has delegated its
execution and monitoring to an ESG workgroup which comprises
of a director of the Company.

The ESG Workgroup is pivotal to the success of ESG
management: it lays down sustainability strategies based on the
Board’s vision, determines material aspects with reference to
stakeholders’ responses, gathers information from departments
and functional heads and conducts analyses, directly reports
back to the Board on the Group’s performance and its
recommendations.
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APPROACH (conTD)

Implementation and Governance Structure (cont’d)

The management is the decision-making body of environmental
and social performance. It comprises members from various
functions of the Group to ensure that the Group’s policies are
working towards the best practice in areas such as business
growth, environmental protection, employment and labour
practices, operating practices and community involvement.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
sustainability risks during their day-to-day operations. They
identify key performance indicators (KPIs) associated with their
operations, monitor and report to the management. In addition,
as risk owners, they identify and assess sustainability risks and
report to the management for review.

Stakeholder Engagement

The expectation of stakeholders is evolving and so as our
sustainability strategy. The Group regularly engages with
stakeholders in order to keep our sustainability strategy relevant
to stakeholders and our business.

The Group determines its sustainability strategy through a
systematic process including:

. Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests
. Engage — Interact with stakeholders

o Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine
report content

o Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

44
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APPROACH (conTD)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont’d)

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests

During the year, the ESG Workgroup took into consideration of
current course of business and refined the sampling of
stakeholders accordingly. Findings of the ESG Workgroup were
submitted to the Board for discussions and actions where
necessary.

Phase 1 :

Key Internal stakeholders
engagement

F—PEER -

EEREPIFD E T

Phase 2 :

Key Internal stakeholders
engagement
EME
BN EBHA

* Board of Directors
iR

« Staff representatives

* Suppliers
s

* Customers

'F

Engage — Interact with stakeholders

To identify our reportable material aspects, we carried out an on-
going process of stakeholder engagement. Materiality
assessment was conducted to identify important issues to both
internal and external stakeholders of the Group by questionnaire.
Material topics include issues that have a direct or indirect impact
on the Group’s ability to create, preserve or erode economic,
environmental and social value of itself, its stakeholders and
society at large. This process enables us to categorise various
groups of stakeholders into an engagement matrix: (1) engage,
(2) communicate and (3) inform stakeholders.
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nternal stakeholders

* Other relevant parties
(such as other ESG practitioners)
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APPROACH (conTD)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont’d)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont'd)

In the last stakeholder engagement cycle, the ESG Workgroup
was able to categorise actions to be taken into a matrix, namely:
(1) engage, (2) communicate and (3) inform stakeholders. Based
on the results obtained in the last cycle, we identified 12 topics
which would have significant impacts on our business and/or our
stakeholders during the year. We asked stakeholders to indicate
topics that they considered the Group to give priority. Concerns
on customer satisfaction, product responsibility and occupational
safety and health are highlighted.

Energy use management
=
:;/EEE bk High concern
ater use management JEEREE

KEREE !
Use of the other major materials
HigRERER
Operating compliance
EESH
Staff retention and development
ETREREE
Occupational safety and health
BEZZRER
Product responsibilty
EREE
Customer satisfaction
EFRER
Customer privacy
BFRE

Procurement practices Low concern
Research and development
o ER A 3
Local community involvement
HESH

P&

S

12

External Stakeholders

11

12

The assessment results were discussed and validated by the
management of the Group. The Group has decided to continue
its efforts on people issues where the Group has a relatively high

sustainability impact.
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APPROACH (conTD)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont’d)

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group identified stakeholders’ priorities to
work on over the coming year:

. Continue policy enhancement
> Review our current policies on major ESG subject
areas of staff safety and health, customer service

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

J Increase disclosure coverage
> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators
(KPI) where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of
stakeholders and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report
is also included in the evaluation process.

SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. During the year, the
Group enhanced data collection approaches and recorded
certain key performance indicators (KPIs) as stated in Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules. KPIs were measured and recorded
regularly by the ESG Workgroup. The Group has set target to full
disclosures by end 2020. The Group would go beyond minimum
disclosure requirements where appropriate.

Sustainability performance data was analysed. Both KPIs and
analysis were reported to the Board for discussion and
establishment of improvement plans. Previously we have
targeted to reduce the total energy consumption per employee by
10% by 2020 from the performance recorded for the year ended
31 March 2017 (the “Baseline”); we are pleased to report that
such target has been accomplished.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use
of energy and waste. We first implement business activities for
which we bear responsibility and address the environmental
issues by integrating environment considerations in our business.
We create environmental awareness amongst our staff members
and whenever possible and practical to do so. We aim to
contribute to the sustainable future and be in harmony with the
global environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its GHG
emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5% of the
total GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy
efficiency are outlined on pages 71 to 72.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to
minimise travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and
emissions to air. In addition, we encourage our staff to use public
transport; for those that are not accessible by public transport
means, to carpool when travelling on business. Discharges to
water are made through public sewages system. There was no
discharge to water and/or land. There was no prosecution to the
Group in relation to air emissions during the year.

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste.
We have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 73. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.
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ENVIRONMENT (conTD)

IRIB (@)

A1 Emissions (cont’d) A1 EERYD (48)
Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility SEBEEYUITEA N ITEMERAIRDE - REAF
of re-use. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to B A&EEUWEIINEHEZTEEYEEENRIE -
non-hazardous waste handling during the year.
2020 2019
—EDEF —E-hEF
Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) BER B2 = (E6E 1) (HF) 0.006 0.006
NOx (tonnes) A& (W) 0.006 0.006
SOx (tonnes) WE ALY (W) 0.000 0.000
Particulate matter (tonnes) SEE RN T (W) 0.000 0.000
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BERBEHHES (BE1K2)
(CO,e tonnes) (Z&EtiEEM) 741.670 781.001
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO,e tonnes) BER(EE) (ZatmE2m) 25.269 18.647
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (CO,e tonnes) EEHER (BE2) (ZathE 2 M) 716.401 762.354
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area B EEEENEEH K (BE2)
(CO,e tonnes/m?) (Z| LB E 8N, FHK) 0.084 0.089
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per employee FAESNWEE R (EE?2)
(CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZEREEM ES) 5.117 5.524
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) per BUEEEENBERAS (SEE1
floor area (CO,e tonnes/m?) ko) (ZE {tmEEME F7K) 0.087 0.092
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) per employee SHAEEWHNEE (BE1KR2)
(CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZEtREEM ES) 5.298 5.659
Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes) ° BEBREYEEES ()"
Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) BEERVELRS () 7.412 7.034
Total non-hazardous waste produced BNEAEEMELEEESEREY
per floor area (tonnes/m?) BE (W F5HK) 0.001 0.001
Total non-hazardous waste produced BAEEMELEEEEYEE
per employee (tonnes/employee) (W8, EE) 0.053 0.051
1 Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible. 1 EEBEYEBEEMTRE -
A2 Use of Resources A2ERERA
Electricity il

We have been phasing out old air-conditioners by energy-saving
ones since 2016. Indoor temperature remains at 23°C-25°C.

Besides, old halogen lamps in shops have also been gradually
replaced by LED spotlights. It consumes less energy, helps lower
the indoor temperature (which requires less air-conditioning) but
maintains approximate brightness. We are planning to phase out
fluorescent lightings from T8 to T5 which consumes less energy.

B-Z—AFE RMEBESHAEAZH  EmE
FEREZE - ENREAIFN23°CE25°C e

o ERANEXARETCESERAB/LEDE
K o LEDRABERBDER - APREEZNR
E(ULHER) YAESHEENRE - RMES
EZSAERED RN TE R AEIMA TSR -
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ENVIRONMENT (conTD)

A2 Use of Resources (cont’d)

Electricity (contd)

Our promotional light boxes go automatically off from midnight to
morning to reduce energy consumption.

Previously we have targeted to reduce the total energy
consumption per employee by 10% by 2020 from the Baseline;
we are pleased to report that such target has been accomplished.

Water

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of “treasure
every drop” are posted at prominent place next to taps to
encourage staff members to minimise the use of water. We plan
to replace old taps with sensor-type and/or add flow regulators to
control water flow when feasible. As a supplier of home fittings,
we provide a range of products with green features (eco-sensor,
flow regulator, smart green design) to the market.

Report ®#E - HERERES

IRIE (@)

A2ERFER (&)

E5(#E)

RPNERBERRIREELEBEE - LUBD
TRHEE o

FEERFHERR  REKIN_ZF-FF  SEE
BREFEELERD10%  AEBRARERMNE
BERZER -

7k

SERKDBEGERRZ - KERSEZERNNUE
HBEDECGHBIEE SBEIZERDAK-
B EX KEEERA BB KEE &Y
RATHIER T AERERTRESKRE - 1ER
XERBHERD  BMOTSHESERRER (R
REFERS - MEFEIEE - HEERIREKE) ©

2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZE-hEF
Total energy consumption (MWh) geRAEE KRR 983.743 1,045.07
Total direct energy consumption (MWh) 2 BERREFEE KRR 68.001 63.105
Total direct energy consumption per BNEAEENEEEREAER
floor area (MWh/m2) CKERE S 75K) 0.008 0.007
Total direct energy consumption per BEEENEERRERE
employee (MWh/employee) CkEE1ES) 0.486 0.457
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh) e RBEE CRFE) 915.742 981.966
Total indirect energy consumption per BUEEEENEZRRERS
floor area (MWh/m?) CKERSE75K) 0.107 0.115
Total indirect energy consumption per BHREENREEEREEE
employee (MWh/employee) CkEE 1E8) 6.541 7.116
Water consumption (md) BRKE(LFK) 593.735 928.151
Water consumption per floor area (m3/m?) BEAEBENERKE (ZHKFEHK) 0.070 0.109
Water consumption per employee (m3employee) BREENEFEKE (IHXKES) 4.241 6.726
Total packaging material (tonnes) BEMRHEE (W) 3.270 3.404
Total packaging material per floor area (tonnes/m?) E{iEEEBHNEEMEIEE (T HK) 0.000 0
Total packaging material per employee BERENEBEMBES
(tonnes/employee) (W, BE) 0.023 0.025
2 Figure calculated with reference to EIA US. 2 HFRIBEEIAUSEHE -
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ENVIRONMENT (conTD)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on pages 71 to 72.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group’s
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues)
which is yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified
paper, the Group encourages the use of paperless
communication. If printing is necessary, we encourage
environmentally friendly printing manner (such as to print on both
sides, reduce font size and margin). For internal reference
document, we upload to intranet or circulate hardcopies instead
of printing one copy for each staff member. In addition, paper
collection tray is placed next to printer to gather single-side-
printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the
use of paper and provide the best protection to the goods
contained. The materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety
standards. Besides, we encourage the use of carton boxes for
multiple times.

,k

FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not-for-profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to
our operations after software upgrades. We are aware of
potential environmental and health hazards related to disposal of
e-waste. Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

. Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such
as Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project

Total paper consumption (tonnes) #HoEFEE = ()
Office paper (tonnes) WA= AL (WE)
Paper for printing publications (tonnes) FTENFI ¥ AR 4% (W)

IRIB (@)

ASBRERKXRER
BWLHE
BBV AESHBENETIET2E -

B AR

FERAZERAARETRESETIY BT BRMK
EEZEERFRBLEML  EHRBERENES
M (MERB) BRI - REETERAZRMER
ZEBREE  TEHBFEAREKBR o MFEHTD
KMSBRENITEN IR (FIZ0EEITE - 5/ 78
MER) - HRATSEH  BPLEZRBEHER
B MIERBUKEMITEN—HEIR o teih - 4R
WEESHRERITEKEE  IWEEEITENMNARER - U
EEA -

EMNEESRERORIAN  MSERD A
BEAMBERNEMRHARERE - BB
REEZIEBR2RE - It HAEEERE KM
/N

b RMEBRZESRBUFEMELTIEE . RIENS
EBERRIMERELEE G LASNERE L
ATHERE -

EREFRE

RRESHESFREBNEASS - B TRERE
HARE  BEBRHRERFEETHRA - RMNEH
FHEBEEFHRNEBEERERRERE  BUKR
BT LT

. B BB TIEBUTAES - flNEERESEM

G
2020 2019
—z-2s S
7.823 9.292
5.214 5.217
2.609 4.075
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and
development depend upon the quality, performance and
commitment of its staff members. We are committed to providing
equal opportunity to our staff, matching the right people with the
right job, and offering them a suitable platform to develop and
excel in their career. Besides, we keep in mind to treat all staff
members fairly and equally. We are committed to the provision of
a healthy and safe workplace and encourage the work-life
balance of staff members.

B1 Employment
As at 31 March 2020, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong
was recorded at 140 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements
including but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund,
Statutory Minimum Wages, Employees’ Compensation Insurance
and Paid Annual Leave. Competitive packages are offered to
attract, retain and motivate competent individuals. We are
dedicated to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, including recruitment,
compensation and benefits, training, staff promotion and transfer.
All staff members are assessed based on their ability,
performance and contribution, irrespective of their gender, age,
disability, family status, race, religious beliefs or sexual
orientation.

We provide employee benefits such as medical allowance and
transport allowance. The Group supports the staff’'s family life by
providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network “Gender Focal
Point”.

R - HAERERRS

HeE

ERRE THA
AEBEEEEZ AN RENERRE  BHET
ZEE RARKE - BMHN BB TRHETSH
# AABE RETBBFERTELMOEE -
Hesh - RMBWERYFART—RAL - RMFR
DRERERREHTEBRS  WIRIE TIEEEE
T o

B11EE

RZE-EF=A=+—-8 ' AEENEBEIA
2HH140F

ZFNEBREFESETRE  BRETRRES

MRS ZEREIE EEBRERBREHF
B RPMRMHABRTE D 2HMETBURS - BERS
BESRAT AKEBHEEREREAZRESRE
BFPEHRE  EPEEHE  HFMRERN FI - B
A REE - REBETNRERES 28D - REMERME
HEFE - A REMR - Fie - RE - RERR - &
B REUS SRR

FEBRHEBFEZMETBEUESRERERF UK
FrREEL REEIZRELE AKECZHF
BB AP B R A AR [P BIFRE AR A
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SOCIAL (coNTD) HE @

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d) BEREIER (&)
B1 Employment (cont’d) B11E1# (48)

All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is ZAEEETIHAZBET r HARWMT :

comprised of:

Gender % 3l

EEEEE 59% 41%

B Male Bt [ Female &%

ST 10% 64%

Below 30 =+ KT [ 30-50=+ZF+ B Over 50 BBHET

Length of service g #% &

22% 7% 23%
0-3years ZE=F > 3-5years BB=ZHF B >5-10years BBEZE
11% 37%
CET T[]
LT ]
M >10-15years BB+E+HF B > 15years BB+EF

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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SOCIAL (conTD)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space
for staff members to work in. Apart from that, a number of
initiatives have been carried out to increase the staff awareness
in health and safety at work:

. Occupational safety briefing
> Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

> Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe
or is not properly trained

U Staff handbook (detailing employees’ benefits and welfare,
holiday and leave, working hours, feedback mechanisms)

All staff members, before going to construction sites, have
attended safety training. When entering construction sites, they
are equipped with safety helmet and briefed by relevant safety
officers.

In light of the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease during the year,
we have implemented the following measures to safeguard the
safety of our staff members, such as:

. Raise the frequency of cleaning in workplace

o Provide surgical masks and disinfection products to all staff
members

o Take body temperature of staff members

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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SOCIAL (conTD)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d)

B3 Development and Training

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working
environment for our staff members. The management reviews its
training and career development programmes with employees.
Set out below are some training and development programmes:

. Sales and product training
> Product training: Overseas trade fairs

> In-house training: Across senior to junior sales
representatives

. Management training
> For directors and senior management team to keep
them abreast of the latest regulatory requirements,
corporate governance practices, macro-economics and

consumer trends

. Warehouse operation training
. Back office operation training
B4 Labour Standards

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of
our operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour.

HE @

BEREIER (&)

B3 % /R K155

AEBLAETEERN  EHREEHBNITHER
B EEERESARBNABIIREXRBRAR -
LT HHoEIIREREE

o HEREME
> EmEENEZRE

> AR BREENRTSH

o EEESI
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miiE%

o EBREPQAERESEI
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SOCIAL (conTD) HE e
Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d) BERSZIER (&)
B5 Supply Chain Management B5 e R & FF

Our customers include contractors, property developers and HKMEFEERAES - WEBRREARSHE - KR
dealers. We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each BHEFEEFENEE  HWRE-ZIEDURE
customer, and offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’ ZEFMHEXK -

needs.

The number of major suppliers, in terms of purchase amount, by FBEESHEMS  RMFBSINWETEMEFHE W
geographical region is indicated below: I

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



SOCIAL (conTD)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont'd)

We pay attention to the operating practices of our suppliers
(including but not limited to employment practices, product
responsibility, anti-corruption policy). We regularly conduct
factory visits to inspect their production capacity, technical
capability, quality control systems, production facilities, testing
capability and personnel quality.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong,
we requested for green features in our products, such as water
flow control and FSC-certified materials. We will continue our
efforts in bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range of
factors such as price, past performance, the scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards. Training sessions are held to help sub-
contractors familiarise with the features and installation
techniques of our products. We conduct appraisals to evaluate
sub-contractors’ performance.

B6 Product Responsibility

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder's hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to
provide quality products and services to fulfil customers’ needs;
and to establish the brand and reputation of our Group for
customers’ recognition of our ability to serve them with two
fundamental qualities, “sincerity” and “quality”, which would
enable us to build customer loyalty, allowing us to establish
strong customer relationships for future businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of our
products originate from Europe where rigorous product testing
regulations and requirements are in place. Nevertheless, we
carry out a number of measures to ensure product safety, such
as warranties and certificates from manufacturers, tests
according to customers’ requirements.

HE @

BREREIER (&)

B5 (RfEHEETE ()
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SOCIAL (conTD)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d)

B6 Product Responsibility (cont’d)

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and
feedback from customers, of which feedback identifies areas of
improvement. We have established various communication
channels including corporate website and social media platforms
to facilitate and strengthen communication with our customers.
Feedback from customers is discussed and improvement will be
made where appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials
are reviewed to ascertain their compliance with relevant
marketing communication practices.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used
for its intended purpose. We regularly brief our staff, especially
front-line staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct that
complies with HKEX expectations on corporate governance and
the Independent Commission Against Corruption’s anti-corruption
policies. Our staff handbook has outlined such code of conduct to
all staff members including prevention of bribery. There was no
legal case brought against the Group for corruption during the
year.

Subcontract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations
from potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of
factors such as: price, past performance, scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards. Decisions on subcontract appointments
are reviewed and endorsed by the management of the Group.

B8 Community Investments

The Group is committed to be an active participant in the local
community wherever it operates. Our participation to the
community does not limit to donations but also voluntary works.
We also encourage its employees to do the same to contribute to
their neighbourhood. A care to the society will eventually benefit
our future generations.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous
improvement. Stakeholders may at any time send their written
enquiries and concerns to the ESG Representative of the
Company at its Head Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk

HEABENZR

EMBUERNERBEREARENRERLS
=B RHEERRER - FOETBREIRS <&
HEERFEIZEETAARNBRER ZARR
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16-181&

esg@ebon.com.hk
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HONG KONG QUALITY ASSURANCE AGENCY
——

VERIFICATION STATEMENT

Scope and Objective

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA”) has been
commissioned by E. Bon Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “E. Bon Holdings”) to undertake a limited assurance
engagement in respect of the selected information of
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the
“Report”). Our verification processes are limited to the Report
stating E. Bon Holdings’ ESG performance and achievements
from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

The aim of this verification is to undertake a limited assurance
engagement of the selected information stated in the Report with
reference to the “Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Reporting Guide” pursuant to Appendix 27 to Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Main Board Listing Rules”).

This report has been prepared on the basis of the data and
information provided by E. Bon Holdings. Therefore, E. Bon
Holdings is liable and responsible for the preparation of the ESG
Report, including but not limited to any material
misrepresentation, arising out of fraud or error. HKQAA do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (CoNTD)

Methodology

The process applied in this verification was based on the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised), Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. The
verification procedure was designed for devising opinions and
conclusions to obtain a limited level of assurance. The extent of
this verification process undertaken covered the criteria set in the
ESG Reporting Guide.

The process included reviewing the internal data collection and
management mechanism, interviewing responsible personnel
with accountability for preparing the Report. Examining the raw
data and supporting evidence of representative samples of data
and information selected for verification was based on a risk-
based approach.

Our assurance engagement was with respect to the information
within the Reporting Period only and we have not performed any
procedures with respect to any earlier periods or any other
elements included in the 2019/2020 Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report and, therefore, do not express any
conclusion thereon.

Independence

HKQAA was not involved in collecting and calculating the
reporting data, or in the development of the Report. HKQAA’s
activities are independent from E. Bon Holdings.

Limitation and Exclusions

The verification is carried out based on the data and information
provided by E. Bon Holdings, assuming they are complete and
true.

The following items are excluded from the scope of work:

. Any information not directly linked to the selected
environmental, social and governance data;

J Activities outside the defined reporting period;
. Company strategy and position statements (including any
expression of opinion, belief, aspiration, expectation, aim or

future intention) ; and

. Financial data which is taken from E. Bon Holdings’ Annual
Report and Accounts.
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (conTD)

Assurance Conclusion

Based on the verification activities, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that E. Bon Holdings’ verified
information for the Reporting Period is not prepared, in all
material aspects, with reference to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide” pursuant to Appendix
27 to the “Main Board Listing Rules”.

Signed on behalf of HKQAA

KT TING
Director, Strategic Services Development
June 2020

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

=

ZEZH @

A
~A Al

EREMOERE  RMARBRITASEERME
ERBTERBACRINRE LEREREN
EFREEARFTEABESREREMRAMZE =Tt
FREE R - HEREBMEEEDHER -

A s I

TEE
Y
202056 A



INDEX ]

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BE- —RIEE Description Compliance level Reference (page)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwec

To the Members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 96 to 181, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2020;

J the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

J the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

" PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

J Provision for inventory obsolescence

. Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
and contract assets
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTD)

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Refer to notes 2.11 and 4.1 to the consolidated financial
statements for the disclosures of the related accounting policies,
judgements and estimates

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held inventories of HK$145
million.

The Group determines the net realisable value (“NRV”) at each
period end based on the estimated selling price less cost to sell
and the estimated quantity to be sold in the future. It requires
significant judgements and assumptions to be made to determine
the estimated selling price and sales quantity of individual
products, including historical experience of selling products of
similar nature, current market conditions and other available
information. The estimations are also subject to uncertainties as
a result of future changes of market trends, customer demands
and fashion trends.

We focused on this area because of the significance of the gross
inventory balance to the consolidated financial statements and
the estimation and judgement involved in determining the
provision.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls by which
management estimated the NRV, and found the assessment
processes to be consistent with those of the prior years.

For products with material balances as at year end, we discussed
with management and evaluated the assumptions on estimated
future sales, which were based on (i) secured orders received
from customers as at year end; (ii) historical sales data in the
past two years which reflected the expected life cycle of similar
products; and (iii) future sales strategies that might require
adjustments to the historical sales pattern for the selected
products.

We obtained evidence for these explanations and evaluated the
relevance of these factors by using our industry knowledge. We
tested, on a sample basis, the secured orders from customers
and NRV of products by comparing the estimated selling price
and sales quantity of individual products with the corresponding
post year-end sales data.

We considered these assumptions appropriate based on the
procedures performed above.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTD)

Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
and contract assets

Refer to notes 2.8 and 4.2 to the consolidated financial
statements for the disclosures of the related accounting policies,
judgements and estimates

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had trade and retention
receivables of HK$142 million and contract assets of HK$4
million.

Management assesses the provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on the lifetime
expected credit losses. These receivables are grouped by shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery. The expected credit loss rates are determined based
on historical credit losses experience and are adjusted to reflect
the effects of current conditions as well as forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. Receivables relating to
customers with known financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection are assessed individually for provision for impairment.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the trade and
retention receivables and contract assets to the consolidated
financial statements and the estimation and judgement involved
in determining the expected credit losses allowance of these
receivables.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested the key control procedures
performed by which management assessed the expected credit
losses, including its procedures on periodic review of aged
receivables and assessment on expected credit losses allowance
of these receivables.

We tested the accuracy of the ageing report of trade and
retention receivables on a sample basis by tracing to invoices.

We tested the subsequent settlement of trade and retention
receivables on a sample basis by tracing to bank receipts.

We obtained management’s assessment on the expected credit
losses allowance of these receivables. We corroborated and
validated management’s assessment based on the historical
settlement pattern, correspondence with customers, evidence
from external sources including public search results relating to
the financial circumstances of the relevant customers and market
research regarding the relevant forward-looking information such
as macroeconomic factors applied in management’s assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTD)

We considered the estimation and judgement made by
management in determining the expected credit losses allowance
of trade and retention receivables and contract assets were
supportable by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report By EEmRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTD)

U Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (conTD)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z-—Z-TF=A=1+—-HALEFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other losses, net
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Other comprehensive
(loss)/income

Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange losses on translation of

financial statements of
foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Deficit on revaluation of properties

held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use
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13
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meETHEWEE
2020 2019
bt ot 13 —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiT Fi#T
510,436 539,758
(303,706) (328,954)
206,730 210,804
3,632 1,223
(4,110) (2,232)
(104,228) (111,926)
(79,876) (77,563)
22,148 20,306
136 76
(5,895) (1,033)
(5,759) (957)
16,389 19,349
(5,063) (4,264)
11,326 15,085
(1,369) (2,201)
(9,150) (465)
1,509 77




Notes
{hEs

Other comprehensive loss FEHME2EERE  BRHEZ

for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income AAGEERLEE

for the year attributable to equity ZEWFH S5

holders of the Company
Earnings per share (expressed in SRR (UERBILAEN)

HK cents per share)

— Basic and diluted —EARREE 15

2020 2019
—z-%5 e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT T8
(9,010) (2,589)
2,316 12,496

1.89 cents &A1l

2.51 cents Bl

The notes on pages 103 to 181 are an integral part of these 5103ZE 181 EzME AR KRR -2 -

consolidated financial statements.

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR

97



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2020 R=Z=ZF=A=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Deferred income tax assets
Trade, retention and other

receivables

Current assets
Inventories
Current income tax recoverable
Trade, retention and
other receivables
Contract assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

BE

FRBEE

M - BENRRE

EREEE

REME

ELFREHRERE

FEWBRFR - FEUR AR B R
K H A R

RBEE
FE
AR E A ATS
FEURBRR - FEURfR B K
R H s FE WK
BHEE
ReRBESEEY

HEE

B
RRBMAEEGER

&N
et

gD
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By et

16
17
18
26

21

20

21
21
22

27
28

- s o)
e AR R
2020 2019
—g-8F —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR T
175,057 194,722
72,188 -
31,600 34,700
6,458 4,767
6,163 14,396
291,466 248,585
144,870 169,546
1,400 7,983
153,822 124,161
3,629 3,677
83,434 66,365
________ 387,155 871,732
678,621 620,317
60,060 60,060
390,117 402,816
450,177 462,876



LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Borrowings
Current income tax liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Other provision
Lease liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

afE

RBEE

FEAS BRI ELAR AT R
BHAME
TTEEREE
HEEE

(EEN

REFEHEE

FRBRME
Htigs

— =

ELFEHEaE

mefE

mEZREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 181 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2020 and were

signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
A

Director

EF

The notes on pages 103 to 181 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

2020 2019

S

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FET FAExT
23 34,544 38,655
23 77,189 54,118
25 807 576
17 33,617 -
24 10,656 36,587
4,642 3,047

161,455 132,983

3,500 2,500

17 43,929 -
26 19,560 21,958
_________ 66,989 24,458
________ 228,444 157,441
678,621 620,317

FBEIBIENGEURRRECLETENR -
EEXAZTNE#ME YA THESKRRES -

TSE Sun Po, Tony
it 8
Director

EFE

F103Z 181 Bz M ARSGEAHERER—BD -
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100

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z-Z-_TF=A=1+—-HALEFE

At 1 April 2018

Adjustments on adoption
of HKFRS 15, net of tax

Restated balance at
1 April 2018

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income

Exchange loss on translation

of financial statements
of foreign operations
Deficit on revaluation of
properties held
for own use
Tax effect relating to
revaluation of properties
held for own use

Total comprehensive
income

Dividends (note 14(a))
Appropriation to statutory
reserve (note 28)

Transactions with owners

At 31 March 2019

R=E-NE0A-H

FREBHEREER
F15RNAR RB%

RZ2-NEWA-H
L

FERA
Rt ERE

BERNRHIHER
ZERER

REBRNEELER

CEERRERIES
WA

2EREAT

TR (RizE 14(a))
EEREIE (Wi 2s)
BEEZRS

ime S 3
ZA=t+-H

ANy 2] =
wh (A * o IX @J 43—%

Share Share  Revaluation Merger Capital ~ Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital premium resenve reserve reserve resenve reserve eamings Total
Bx  ROVEE EMRE  GHRE  EXRG ENRE ARG REER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
60,060 1,201 144137 6,979 2,896 2,458 2,155 259,325 479211
- - - - - - - (7,810) (7,810)
60,060 1,201 144,137 6,979 2,896 2,458 2,155 251,515 471,401
- - - - - - - 15,085 15,085
- - - - - (2201) - - (2.201)
- - (465) - - - - - (465)
- - 7 - - - - - 77
- - (388) - - (2,201) - 15,085 12,496
- - - - - - - (21,021) (21,021)
- - - - - - (15) 15 -
- - - - - - (15)  (21,008)  (21,021)
60,060 1,201 143,749 6,979 2,896 257 2,140 245,594 462,876

The notes on pages 103 to 181 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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At1 April 2019

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income

Exchange loss on translation

of financial statements
of foreign operations
Deficit on revaluation of
properties held
for own use
Tax effect relating to

revaluation of properties

held for own use

Total comprehensive
income

Dividends (note 14(a))
Appropriation to statutory
reserve (note 28)

Transactions with owners

At 31 March 2020

The notes on pages 103 to 181 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

RZB-NEWA-H

FERER
A2 EkE

BEENRIBRR
ZERER

BEBRNZEEER

RRERRANE
ZHERE

REUEAT

RE (M 14(a))
EEREIE (Wi 28)
gfi5E235

RZB-B%
=Zh=t-H

Share Share Revaluation Merger Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
B RORE ERRE SRR E4ARE  EXRE  AERE  REER At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TR TiET TiEn TiEx AT TiEn TiET TR
60,060 1,201 143,749 6,979 2,896 257 2,140 245,594 462,876
- - - - - - - 11,326 11,326
- - - - - (1,369) - - (1,369)
- - (9,150) - - - - - (9,150)
- - 1,509 - - - - - 1,509
- - (7,641) - - (1,369) - 11,326 2,316
- - - - - - - (15,015) (15,015)
- - - - - - 37 37 -
- - - - - - (37) (14,978) (15,015)
60,060 1,201 136,108 6,979 2,896 (1,112) 2,103 241,942 450,177

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z-Z-_TF=A=1+—-HALEFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax refund/(paid)

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payment for settlement of forward
contracts

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Sales proceeds of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Interest paid on bank borrowings
Principal elements of lease payments
Interest paid on leases

Repayment of trust receipt loans
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange loss on cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

EEEDRERE
mEEEIRS
FSBUER, (B)

HREETHELFRE
RETBHZRERE
ERSHOTENH

BEME BERRE

3 - BB RRIBHEERSHR

2RFE
REFZBHAFERE
METBRHERE
S HATE TR
BEER
EATIRITERFE
HENREEED
2HEERNE
ERRBEERZER
2IRE
RIEEFBAERE

RERRESEWFEM
FURERBREEEY

RERRELENELERE

FRESRBELZEY

The notes on pages 103 to 181 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

Notes
FMIEE

29(a)

29(b)

22

SERERERX
2020 2019
—E-FF =F-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT Tz
110,180 66,092
305 (14,210)
________ 1048 5188
(1,260) (2,195)
(5,965) (18,725)
109 55
136 76
__________ (6:980) __ (20.789)
2,164 12,392
(12,059) (8,508)
(1,298) (1,033)
(39,275) -
(4,597) -
(16,036) (8,679)
(15,015) (21,021)
________ (86,116) __(26.849)
17,389 4,244
66,365 62,357
(320) (236)
83,434 66,365

F103E 181 Ee Mz AREREH KRR -0



GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business is 16th—18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. lts shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon
Holdings Limited have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for
own use, investment properties and derivative financial
instruments, which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &Rk Mz

— AR

BHTERBRAT(ARAT D ARHEHS
HMA2BREEAE > HFMREE I
% Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands & B+ Z & 2t 2 R BB R E21EE
BHFE-—HERE16E 181 - HRHONE B

FERSZEROR (R 2ERLT ©

RRBNEBEBRHREEZR - HB QA8
EREBRTEAREKMETHED EE
A3 TERZEEERS 48 BE
RERARM

BREARPAIN  ZEGEUBBRRUBTLS) -

TESHHREZR

RUZSHAVBRENRAIESHRER
T - RRAHBI  BERERHE 2R
FEEMIRA -

21 mEMEE
TBHITERBRATDZGEMERERTY
REFMBEAEBNBRELEN(ES
BTSSR A ) RE B A TMEAI (5622
Z)MBRERE - KRG M BRRMBEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEFGHBERHBE@m)
POLICIES (conTD)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 HmEEE(E)
(a) New and amendments to standards adopted (a) ZKEERAKFERRERIETTE

104

by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 April 2019:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle
HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Group had to change its accounting policies
following the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases”
(“HKFRS 16”). The adoption of other amendments
and interpretation listed above did not have
material impact on the Group’s accounting
policies and consolidated financial statements.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(b) New and amended standards not yet adopted
The following new standards, amendments and
interpretation to standards which have been
issued, but are effective for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2020 and have not
been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material
HKAS 8

ERGHENE1HR BEAZER
BRGERE8HIET R

Amendments to HKAS 39, Hedge accounting

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

ERGERE0N HEUE  HPEH
BREZRE7THERBEBMBRRE
RS 9 SRABRT AR

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

TESTHEBE @)

21 REEREEHE)
(b) EHRAEERELHIFERIRER
1EET A
THFZER] - AT AR 2ED
REZBZEFNA-HR &R
Z FEHEE M AW ER IR

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

RT5 BHE
ZERBZ
FEPEER

1 January 2020
_ ? —_—= qf H H

1 January 2020

1 January 2020

BRIBREEREIFEITAR EBZTER —ZE-ZF¥—-HF—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

é%%ﬁﬁiﬁm%m% REEFHRHBENRREELEZH FEE
BBETTERE 28 HIEFT A ZEEHESLE

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concession 1 June 2020

EEMBREENE16REITAR 20198 MESHEEEEER —EEFXA—H

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for 1 January 2020
Financial Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting

MEBREM2ER(ZE-NF) AER] 2 B R E RS AESR —E-TF-H—H

Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of the above new and
amended standards but is not yet in a position to
state whether they will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s significant accounting
policies and the presentation of its financial
statements.

BB E TG EAH R R ARIERT 2

Rlzs8  HERBBRAREHBZE
HREEEYAEETESTRE
KM BHRENAAHRERE
g o

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEFGHBERHBE@m)
POLICIES (conTD)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 HmEEE(E)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies 211 EFREED

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

As indicated in note 2.1(a) above, the Group has
adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 April
2019, but has not restated comparatives for the
2019 reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in
the opening consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 April 2019. The new accounting
policies are disclosed in note 2.22.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as ‘operating leases’
under the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
April 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 April 2019 was 4.3%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases,
the Group recognised the carrying amount of the
lease asset and lease liability immediately before
transition as the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability at the date of
initial application. The measurement principles of
HKFRS 16 are only applied after that date.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

AN FE R AR AN B B B RS R 22 A
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEFSHBERHBEw@
POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 RHEEE(E)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d) 211 EFBEEE (F)
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group BRAEREBUBHRELENE16
has used the following practical expedients SRR - RSB FEAERIRT R 2 AT
permitted by the standard: BEGE:
. applying a single discount rate to a portfolio . HEFREMALUSHZHEE
of leases with reasonably similar HEERAE—BRE K

characteristics; and

. accounting for operating leases with a . FepHBR =—Z - NFNA
remaining lease term of less than 12 months —BOR12ER 2 REHRE
as at 1 April 2019 as short-term leases. ABRRIEHEE -

The reconciliation between the operating lease REZB-NFE=ZA=+—HMEKE

commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 as at ZEAEEBETERFI7THZE

31 March 2019 and the lease liabilities recognised EHERERR-Z-NEFNA—

in the opening of consolidated statement of B(BEREREBUBERELERSE

financial position as at 1 April 2019 (date of initial 1655 B #1) R E R4S BRI &
application of HKFRS 16) is as follows: BAZHEEEHERNT ¢

HK$’000

FHExT

Operating lease commitments disclosed RIZZB-NEFE=ZA=1+—-BFKE
as at 31 March 2019 2SS BRI 138,160

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental RERERBEEHAERBALS

borrowing rate at the date of initial ERRIZ=ARR

application 125,643
Less: short-term leases recognised on a W RESHERED AR EHES

straight-line basis as expense (7,660)

Lease liabilities recognised as at N-BE-NENA—-—BHEAZ

1 April 2019 HEAE 117,983
Of which are: Hehg

Current lease liabilities REBREEE 37,965

Non-current lease liabilities FRBEEERS 80,018

117,983

BBTERERATD-E-SEER 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESITBERME@)
POLICIES (conTD)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 HmEEE(E)

2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d) 2.1.1 S KEEE (&)

The associated right-of-use assets were
measured at the amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019. There
were no onerous lease contracts that would have
required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets
at the date of initial application.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the
following types of assets:

Properties S

The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the consolidated statement of
financial position on 1 April 2019:

right-of-use assets — increase by HK$116,516,000
J property, plant and equipment — decrease
by HK$1,797,000

J accruals — decrease by HK$3,264,000

J lease liabilities — increase by HK$117,983,000

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

HEEREEEREREEEEZ
THIE BRZE-NF=A
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EEE

1 April 2019
—E-NF
mA—A
HK$'000
i

116,516

RIZE—NAFMA—A  &FHEE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETBREE®@

POLICIES (conTD)

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MIEBLFA

2.2.1 Consolidation 221
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements 222
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

HERRE

MELRANEEMEEERRGE
ZEE (BEERER) - EXEH
BBSHEERE CXBMAENAE
SEAEER REEHEBHE
RBERAEIMPEZELR  £&
BENTIZFIERE - B AR BES
REBEZAEBEAGEAR X
BR&ILZHE R FBFEaAR-

SERRAEZRS - HHEEE

o RERBETTUHE - 1A
FE WBARZH2HECHFH
AE NEANEEZETBE—
E& o

BURBHE

MY D RIRE R AR AN REED
IR o RATREREZEREEK
Ao MBARZEEBRANTEZE
W IR BABR o

iR S BB SRR S H M A T
2REWREE SN EBTHH
HE 2 REBTERBESHBR
ERREUREEFE(BEHE)
ZEREE  AARKERARE
RE IR BB A DREER
B o

2.3 Segment reporting 23 ZoEW/E
Operating segments are reported in a manner REPHRBOEFELERKERMER
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the HBREEM—H2hARE EELE
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating REEWREREHREERE 2817
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating EE BE0RERRAGEE M2

resources and assessing performance of the operating E3

segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that make strategic decisions.

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or
loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are

presented within “Other gains/(losses), net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (conTD)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

TESTHEBE @)

24 SNEBE(E)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at revalued
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the revaluation value at the
date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ significantly from that which would be
determined using revaluation values at the reporting
date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets
previously recognised as an expense, in which case
the increase is credited to the profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease
in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an
asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of unexpired

buildings term of lease or 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of lease
improvements terms or 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

25

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and
are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserve.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. Changes in fair values are recorded in
the profit or loss within “Other losses, net”.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESITEREE@)
POLICIES (conTD)
2.8 Financial assets 28 SRMEE
2.8.1Classification 28158

114

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured at amortised cost; and

. those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss).

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

2.8.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

2.8.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (conTD)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3 Measurement (cont’d)
Debt instruments

TESTHEBE @)

28 TREEH)
2.8.3 it & (#&)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the group
classifies its debt instruments:

EF LA
ERTANRETEIARAEE
EREENEBEARZAEEN
RERBREH - AEEHEBTA
ETOBRN=RBFERRNT :

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The Group’s financial assets carried
at amortised cost comprise “trade and
retention receivables”, “deposits and other
receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3 Measurement (cont’d)
Debt instruments (cont’d)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”)

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETBREE®@

POLICIES (conTD)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3 Measurement (cont’d)

28 TREEH)
2.8.3 it & (#&)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in “Other gains/(losses),
net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

2.84 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. Details on how the
Group determines the expected credit losses are
set out in Note 3.1(c).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

211

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain
or loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss within
“Other gains/(losses), net”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
retention and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the region where
the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)
(b) Deferred income tax (cont’d)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are not provided on
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries because the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.19 Employee benefits

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
finance cost.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (conTD)

2.21 Revenue recognition

TESTHEBE @)

2.21 WEHEHER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts and returns. The Group recognises revenue
when goods are transferred or services are rendered
to the customer.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for the services that the Group has
transferred to a customer. In addition, incremental
costs incurred to obtain a new contract, if recoverable,
are capitalised as contract assets and subsequently
amortised when the related revenue is recognised. A
contract liability is the Group’s obligation to render the
services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration from the customer. A contract
liability is recognised by the Group when the customer
pays consideration in advance before the Group satisfy
the performance obligation to the customer.

(a) Sales of goods
The Group sells architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in the
wholesale and retail market. Revenue from sales
of goods is recognised when control of the goods
has transferred, being when the goods are
delivered to the customer.

Contract revenue

The Group engages in importing, selling and
installation of kitchen collections, and other
construction and decoration works to contractors
and property developers. Revenue from the
services rendered by the Group is recognised
over time as the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The Group has applied the output
method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation of construction contracts is measured
with reference to either surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work.

(b)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTD)

2.21 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(c) Rental income
Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

(d) Finance income

Finance income is recognised using the effective
interest method to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

2.22 Leases

As explained in note 2.1.1 above, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for leases where the
Group is the lessee. The new policy is described below
and the impact of the change in note 2.1.1.

Until 31 March 2019, leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group, as lessee, had
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
were classified as finance leases. Finance leases were
capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, were
included in other short-term and long-term payables.
Each lease payment was allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost was charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
was depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (conTD)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

TESTHEBE @)

222 HE (&)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership were not transferred to the
Group as lessee were classified as operating leases
(note 30(b)). Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

J amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

J the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

J payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (conTD)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

FESTTBEREE @)

222 HE (&)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

J where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received, and

J makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.qg.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

J the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

J any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETBREE®@

POLICIES (conTD)

2.22 Leases (cont’d) 222 HE (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it
has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (note 18). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the consolidated statement of
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financial position based on their nature. The Group did FTERIEE R AR -
not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the
new leasing standard.
2.23 Dividend distribution 223 BRESDIK

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings and interest-bearing bank
deposits. Interest-bearing financial assets/
liabilities at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. Interest-bearing
financial assets/liabilities at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2020, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit
for the year and retained earnings would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$364,000 (2019:
increase/decrease by HK$149,000). The 50 basis
point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual reporting date.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the sales transactions settled in Hong
Kong dollars. However, foreign currencies are
required to settle the Group’s purchases from
overseas suppliers.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising
from certain future commercial transactions and
recognised liabilities, entities in the Group use
forward contracts, transacted with external
financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or
recognised liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(b) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

At 31 March 2020, if the EURO had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HKD with all
other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have changed as follows. The changes are
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of EURO denominated cash
and bank deposits, trade payables and
borrowings.

(c)

3

B R SR (@)

3.1

Post-tax profit (decrease)/increase E&#&E HIR AT # B -

when EURO
— strengthened by 5% — H{E5%
— weakened by 5% — BR{E5%
Credit risk
(i)  Risk management

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
trade, retention and other receivables and
contract assets.

To manage the risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents, deposits are placed to
reputable or state-owned banks with sound
credit rating and the Group considers the
credit risk to be insignificant.

The Group trades with recognised and
creditworthy third parties only. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that
credit terms are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its
customers.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d)

(i)

(if)

Risk management (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade, retention and other
receivables and contract assets represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation these financial assets.

Impairment

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the new expected credit
loss model in HKFRS 9:

o trade and retention receivables and
contract assets; and

o other financial assets carried at
amortised cost.

While cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss as at 31 March
2020 was immaterial.

Trade and retention receivables and contract
assets

The Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected losses for trade
and retention receivables and contract
assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
these receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The contract assets relate to
unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade and retention receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade and retention receivables are
a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d)

(i)

Impairment (cont’d)

Trade and retention receivables and contract
assets (cont’d)

Future cash flows for each group receivables
are estimated on the basis of historical loss
experience on payment profiles of sales over
a period of 24 months before the end of the
reporting period, adjusted to reflect the effects
of current conditions as well as forward
looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. The Group has identified the
unemployment rate of the region in which it
sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

Receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant
doubt on collection are assessed individually
for impairment allowance and determined
whether specific provisions are required.
Receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Based on the Group’s assessment, the
expected credit loss rate of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets is
close to zero and the loss allowance
provision was immaterial during the year
ended 31 March 2020.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d)

(if)

Impairment (cont’'d)

Other financial assets carried at amortised
cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried at
amortised cost include deposits and other
receivables in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The impairment loss of
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured based on the 12-month
expected credit loss. The 12-month expected
credit loss is the portion of lifetime expected
credit loss that results from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime expected credit
loss.

Based on the Group’s assessment,
management considers that the expected
credit loss is immaterial as at 31 March
2020.

(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer

term.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents of HK$83,434,000 (2019:
HK$66,365,000) that could be readily realised to
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNTD) 3 HHEEKRERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 3.1 HBEKREZE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (contd) (d) ZBELEE(E)

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities, based on

R-ZZE-ZEFR-Z-NF=A
=t -8 AEERAQRERK
BRAETRECZEMBBHRTE

undiscounted cash flows, are summarised below: BEZIEEHMENT
Total
contractual Between Between Between
undiscounted Less than 3 months 1and 2and
cash flows 3 months and 1 year 2 years 5 years
BENRE =Rz
RERE SRR -FR  -EZMER  WEIER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TET TER FEL
As at 31 March 2020 R=B-%F
=ZA=t-H
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAEM 34,544 34,544 - - -
Borrowings (note) B (i)
— unsecured —BEH 9,048 5,150 3,898 - -
— secured —BEH 1,671 358 1,074 239 -
Foreign exchange HNEEHEH
forward contract 807 807 - - -
— Inflow —RA (34,022) (34,022) - - -
— Outflow — A 34,829 34,829 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 83,009 10,029 26,202 18,607 28,171
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE-hE
=B=t+-H
Trade and other payables  FEf} BRIk H I 2k 38,655 38,655 - - -
Borrowings (note) EEAGES
— unsecured — EiE A 33,768 20,144 13,624 - -
— secured —BE#R 3,079 355 1,064 1,418 242
Foreign exchange NHNEEHEN
forward contract 576 576 - - -
— Inflow —hA (17,628) (17,628) - - -
— Outflow —Hi 18,204 18,204 - - -
Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation Mz : RIBETBRBESR[MBEHRR2

of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an
overriding repayment on demand clause (“callable
feature”), which gives the lender a clear and
unambiguous unconditional right to demand repayment
at any time at its sole discretion, a borrower shall
classify the term loan as a current liability in its
statement of financial position, as the borrower does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period. Accordingly the long-term portion of the Group’s
bank borrowings of HK$238,000 (2019: HK$1,642,000)
were classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings plus lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.

e MR

B 7S [ B B FE ()
32 BXRER

FEEERERAZBRBRELEEEE
WIFELE  EMBRARRERDR
ERHEMBFHEUAREFER ZERRE
BLUREE AR o

REBIABRELRER  AEEREH
BXINTFRRNRESE MRRED
BERBITHRD  AHEEEURD
&% o

FEERBEEAGBLRERAESR
IR FFE 1T —REK - R IZE
THFBERUE RN BETE - EHFHE
DAREMHAEEERRERRAEEE
Wt 8 - ERBBERGEEM BN KR
B [#E | i L EEFEEEE -

2020

—BECEF

HK$’000

FET

Total bank borrowings (Note 24) HRATIE R (BIEE24) 10,656
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HESE (MEE17) 77,546
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) B RERREEEY (MisE22) (83,434)
Net debt BIE S 4,768
Total equity B 450,177
Gearing ratio BEAE 1.1%

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a net cash
position. Gearing ratio is not applicable.

The Group changes to a net debt position following the
adoption of HKFRS 16. Both net debt and gross assets
increased following the recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities on 1 April 2019. See note
2.1.1 for further information.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other
receivables, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and other payables, borrowings,
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short-
term maturities.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings classified
under property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are carried at fair value. Details of the fair
value measurement of these leasehold land and
buildings are disclosed in note 16 and note 18,
respectively.

The Group measures its fair value of the financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2020
by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

HRAEETREE (D) (BEE
WERR - BRBURERRAMEBYN - 2
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EETREE (BERMRAREMEN
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AEBZRANRTEDABE ZGERMA
R ABBNESR FER-ZF-Z2F
ZA=t-HEAAREIRZEMTA
ZASME - BRW ABE IR T XAt
MORBARARERBAN=EER

«  HEEEREBEERREERTEN
HECREHE) (B1E) -

. BRTE1EMBENREN  ZE
ENEENTEENEMGE AR
B AREEEPIMER) SREE
(ERBER) (B2fE) -

o EENEBAYFRETEETSH
BH@ABB (MR TBEERAH
1) (5E3E) »
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JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD) 3 HMIBEEEE @
3.3 Fair value estimation (cont’d) 3.3 AREMET &)
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREINAEEAR=-ZZE=-ZEF=A
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2020: =ET—HBRAARBEIRZERMIA:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-l B =B Aot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FHERT FHET FHERT
As at 31 March 2020 No-E-EfF
=A=t+—H
Liabilities afE
Foreign exchange forward 4MEEHEH
contracts — not qualified — F~F&&E%K
for hedge accounting fERY RS - 807 - 807
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZZE—hF
=B=+—H
Liabilities afE
Foreign exchange forward SMEEHISH
contracts — not qualified — F~EF&&EK
for hedge accounting fERY S - 576 - 576
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BEREFHHFTRHE

REBRBEBESRRAMRENEF G
RAE BEEACEAEZBER THARRS
iz HE o

REBHRRELEERRBR - AEHNSEHE
FEEEREBLOEABRERER - HEER
BERT—EVBRFEZRAEERENBE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (conTD)

4.1

4.2

Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical
sales pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other
factors and compare the carrying value of inventories
to their estimated net realisable values. The
identification of inventory obsolescence and estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventory
and impairment provision in the year in which such
estimate has been changed.

Provision for impairment of trade and retention
receivables and contract assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
and retention receivables and contract assets based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default
rates, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The estimation of expected credit losses requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the carrying value of
receivables and loss for the impairment of receivables
recognised in the periods in which such estimates have
been changed.

4 BERESFHEF R E @

4.1

4.2

BREFERE
CREBR N FHTFEMERBSER
rEES2EZFERE - HEEWTHE
BEEREIREMER  YHBEFE
ZIREERAMGTREFE - BNEFE
REHEXEBBRT A EEFTEF
R A A o TR ERR AR A E
R UEREIEMTBRELREHF
Az FE 2 REERBERE -

BUERARERRBERRENEERE
B
AEBEREVRARRERBERNR
BRAEBURARERRERRENEE
EHRERE FAEERBAEENE
SENE - BRATSRAREREHR
MATHEMEfE ST ERHEEEZERR
REEZRESENOANE - RHEEE
BIENMAETERERAE R - A
HERRMETT AR FRZHESTERE
Wi R IR Y BR T (B % 1 71 2 58 H P A R
FEW FR R EEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (conTD)

4.3

4.4

Recognition for contract revenue over time

The Group uses the output method in accounting for its
construction contracts for sales and installation of
kitchen collections, and other construction and
decoration works. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is determined
by reference to independent surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction income is
determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted construction costs which
mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and costs of
materials are prepared by the management on the
basis of quotations from time to time provided by major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the Group’s
management conducts periodic review on the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the total contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims which may have
an impact in terms of progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Valuation of leasehold land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in
an active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from
the valuations of leasehold land and buildings
performed by external professional valuers by using
the open market value approach. If the Group used
different valuation techniques, the fair value of the
leasehold land and buildings may be different and thus
may have an impact to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (conTD)

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Management’s assessment is regularly reviewed and
additional deferred income tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

5 REVENUE
Sale of goods EmHE
Contract revenue BRI
Timing of revenue recognition: TR
— At a point in time — RE—FEE
— Over time — BERFE

4

BEREFHER R HE @

4.5

Fris®t

fis) 1R 7] B AR SR P& SR BEE T LUK S5 81 78
g BIREFT SR EEMS R RE A
BRIBEIERR - BEW THRAZIELR
SHEEBRFTECEBFHEEHE -
FTERBEEBME  RRERBEFR K
RBRBLZHRREE - ~AEBEEHER
EEE 27 BMRETEARNKRE
ptimAl - BETWEBEEFEHEE
RSB BEINEEFISREE ©

AEEEEEBRDBEAMMES - R
BERERERAFLHEAHAE - KB
RERAEYEERERKTED o i
ZEBHZBERABBERARRKANR
Hed HABRZHATEFHER
RE 2 B 2 TS H R IBE TS -

2020 2019
—z-%5 o
HK$°000 HK$'000
FB BT
460,966 479,501
49,470 60,257
510,436 539,758
460,966 479,501
49,470 60,257
510,436 539,758
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HAgA
2020 2019
—BE-EF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Rental income HEWA 903 896
Others Hith 2,729 327
3,632 1,223
7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 Hib(BE) W R
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) ERWE(&E) B8

— Forward contracts —ERHAEY (1,491) (2,771)
— Other exchange gain — HME 5 2,159 1,947

Fair value loss on investment REWFENA AEEE (FiEE18)
properties (note 18) (3,100) (1,400)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEERE (31) (8)
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HE&EFREEERE (1,647) -
(4,110) (2,232)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail
of architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom
collections and others

— Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its consolidated financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on the measure of gross profit.
Other operating income and expenses are not allocated to
the operating segments as the information is not regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current
income tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets,
investment properties, cash and cash equivalents, property,
plant and equipment related to the office premises of the
Group and other corporate assets which are managed on
central basis and are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current
and deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings (excluding
trust receipt loans), derivative financial liabilities and other
corporate liabilities which are managed on central basis and
are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.
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MEEZFERE  ERBEEBUBREER
RRAGEVBRREARA IR B -

HITESRBEINNHETHEE I MME
B HRIITESAFEREHAMEE WS
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DTHEEREMEEE  ENERETWERE
Frisst EEFRSHERE - REWE BER
REZEY  BXAKENBFENETRENY
X BERRBUARREMLXEE  ZZEE
WETEE  AUFEEEBMEMEEDH
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Reportable segment
revenue from external
customers

Reportable segment cost
of sales

Reportable segment
gross profit

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Reversal of provision for
inventory obsolescence

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current
segment assets during
the year

Reportable segment
liabilities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (ConTD)

AEH2HIIES
gl L6

A EH 7 EHERA

AJEH 2D EHEF

ME - BERRBITE

EREEENE

BEFERERED

AEH 2T HEE

FERNFRBOMBEE

ZHNE

AEH 22 HEE

e MR

8 EER @
2020
—EEHF
Architectural
builders’
hardware,
bathroom Kitchen
collections collection
and others and furniture Total
BERSE -
ERRE BEXRE
M HEA AR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FExT FHET
389,393 121,043 510,436
(217,274) (86,432) (303,706)
172,119 34,611 206,730
(2,972) (5,148) (8,120)
(21,395) (16,293) (37,688)
3,337 2,908 6,245
298,902 157,320 456,222
13,766 11,084 24,850
72,146 123,369 195,515




SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTD)

8 Db

My

)

2019
ZE-NEF
Architectural
builders’
hardware,
bathroom Kitchen
collections collection
and others and furniture Total
EERS -
FEARE BERE
R EHAb R A BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FiExT
Reportable segment revenue TER>ZEHIHIEF
from external customers 2 EBUR 390,722 149,036 539,758
Reportable segment cost T R 2 D 2R e E B AN
of sales (225,889) (103,065) (328,954)
Reportable segment AIE R < 7 ZPEF
gross profit 164,833 45,971 210,804
Depreciation of property, ME - BERBEINE
plant and equipment (2,886) (4,090) (6,976)
(Provision)/reversal of BEFE (BB BE
provision for inventory BmE
obsolescence (751) 2,882 2,131
Reportable segment assets  AIEHRz K HEE 305,997 96,060 402,057
Additions to non-current FERNFEREBOHEE
segment assets during ZRE
the year 2,618 15,376 17,994
Reportable segment liabilities w[E#HR 5 HEE 74,219 43,797 118,016
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (ConTD)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented
in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment gross profit

Group gross profit

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Deferred income tax assets
Current income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents
Other corporate assets

Group assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Borrowings

Current income tax liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Other corporate liabilities

Group liabilities

AEH 25 &EF

EEEF

AEH 2T HEE

Y3 - BB RRIE
ERAEEE
RENE
ELEFEHERE
QGRS e
RERREEEY
HifbxEE

SEEE

AEH 2o HERE

(EEN

KEEHAE
TTEEmEE
EEFRSHEE
HEAE
Hipib B E

EEAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

REFTEREED WA TERERKEER
BUBBRR TR BBEHROT :

2020 2019
—z=%F —T-nE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB Fi#
206,730 210,804
206,730 210,804
456,222 402,057
95,367 104,091
3,863 -
31,600 34,700
6,458 4,767
1,400 7,983
83,434 66,365
277 354
678,621 620,317
2020 2019
—g=%F —T-nE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiB FiERT
195,515 118,016
3,450 13,345
4,642 3,047
807 576
19,560 21,958
3,943 -
527 499
228,444 157,441




8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTD) 8 SEER
Geographical information Rt & 2 5 E R

Non-current assets
(excluding financial assets

Revenue from external and deferred income
customers tax assets)
(RBEE (TEBESHEE
HIMEF s MEEFIEREE)
2020 2019 2020 2019
— i —F-NF —E-%F =F-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET THET FET
Hong Kong (domicile) & (EZ&%ith2) 491,928 514,415 272,775 225,474
PRC HhE] 18,508 25,343 6,070 3,948
Total et 510,436 539,758 278,845 229,422
The geographical location of customers is determined based EFHBEVERBRXNERMAEMLEME - 3F
on the location at which the goods were delivered. The REBEEHENERRBEZEECERNVE
geographical location of the non-current assets is ME °

determined based on the physical location of the assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, HK$68,214,000 or BE-Z-ZE-A=1+—HILFE F£H
approximately 13% of the Group’s revenue was derived & 68,214,000 78 TS 49 13% K B B — ¥ 5
from a single external customer. During the year ended 31 BEF - BEZE-NF=A=T+T—HLEFE"
March 2019, no single customer contributed over 10% of BHEE - E P EAREEWHEB10% °

the Group’s revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

9

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Employee benefit expenses (note 11)
Auditors’ remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services
Cost of inventories (note 20)
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (note 16)

Depreciation of right-of-use asset

(note 17)

Short-term lease expense
(2019: Operating lease charges in

respect of land and buildings)

Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generated

rental income

Reversal of provision for inventory

obsolescence (note 20)

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

BTRAZH (MEE11)

B ETEN &

— REBRH

— FRBRE

FERA (iEE20)

E — W% - BERRE (M 16)

FEHEERX (=
T REFEERERH)

9

e — EREEE (ME17)

—hE:

EEHSWAZRENEEE

KERX

BEFERERE (FHEE20)

X2

2020
—E-EF

—_—=—=

HK$’000
FT
75,151
1,980
185
285,049
14,313

41,551

8,572

105

(6,245)

2019
—E-hEF
HK$'000
FTET
77,589
2,368
148
304,992

13,086

53,774

103

(2,131)




10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

10 MBER  FHE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx FET
Finance costs U 9%
Bank borrowings RITE 1,298 1,033
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEEEFE 4,597 -
5,895 1,033
Finance income B A
Interest income FEUA (136) (76)
Finance costs, net BIER B 5,759 957
11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 11 EIEMNEZH
2020 2019
—ECEHE —EBE-AEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Salaries and allowances, including FekER  BRESME (isE12)
directors’ emoluments (note 12) 71,345 74,605
Pension costs — defined contribution  E#R&mHA& — REMIRETZ
plans 2,806 2,984
Other long-term employee benefits HitREEERR 1,000 -
75,151 77,589
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 12 EEZRAREGERAERS H N
AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS At
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) ESZHM
The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable ENSENRARES2MERAEMNT ¢

to the directors of the Company are as follows:
2020 —EBoEE
Employer’s

contribution
to retirement

Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees and bonus scheme Total
RERIK
EE5Wme FeREL UG8 @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTET FTET FTET FTER
Executive directors HTES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry WEE (EF)

(Chairman) 100 2,845 18 2,963
TSE Sun Wai, Albert HEE 100 4,267 - 4,367
TSE Sun Po, Tony HHHE (EEREE)

(Managing Director) 100 3,615 18 3,733
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin A 100 2,756 18 2,874
LAU Shiu Sun BB 100 1,653 18 1,771
Independent non-executive By ##TES

directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J. P. RRABAFHL

(note a) (Kizxa) 54 - - 54
WONG Wah, Dominic i 108 - - 108
WAN Sze Chung R 108 - - 108
Luk Wang Kwong (note b)  f=%E (Fiztb) 28 - - 28

798 15,136 72 16,006
Note: 5T
(@) Passed away on 31 August 2019 (@) RZZ-—AFNB=+—HEt-
(b)  Appointed as director on 29 November 2019 (b) REZB-AF+-A=+IHEEZEIARE
$ o
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 12 ES2@ARERERE B &SN

AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONT'D)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (cont’d)

AL @)

(a) EE=ZHMWE)

2019 —E-hEF
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees and bonus scheme Total
RERMNK
EEZHe Fe R kT2 FEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FERT FERT
Executive directors HTES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry HEE (EFE)

(Chairman) 100 3,281 18 3,399
TSE Sun Wai, Albert BiEE 100 4,915 - 5,015
TSE Sun Po, Tony HIE (EBELKE)

(Managing Director) 100 4,173 18 4,291
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin HEg 100 3,108 18 3,226
LAU Shiu Sun 2B 100 1,774 18 1,892
Independent non-executive By k#TES

directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J. P. PRBAF#HL 108 - - 108
WONG Wah, Dominic B 108 - - 108
WAN Sze Chung BRER 108 - - 108

824 17,251 72 18,147

No directors have waived or agreed to waive their
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: Nil).

BE-_Z-_ZTHF=-A=+-HLEFE"
VEEERRIRZRERE 2ME (=
Z-NFHE) o

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONT'D)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors

As at 31 March 2020, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in note 32, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Key management personnel
The Group regards the executive directors as the key
management personnel. Details of the remuneration
paid to them are set out in (a).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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12 EFEvEANERESZREBARS M
AL @@

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

EERAFSERERER

FR - BEZEEC WIS RBUEME
KRB HBBERN (ZF—NF  H) -

BERUEERBMETE=FRE

REBE-_Z-_ZEF=A=+—HLEE,
AEBYERTAE=FREESRE
MEEZARE(ZE—NF 8) -

MES ZASESLHFNEAERR
ZEENREIRRMAEMER - Bl
EXSERESNHMBRS

R-ZZB-ZEF=ZA=+—-H LE@E
2 ZREESEMNNEABRBRZE
ENBEEIRRETANER  BLER
FERESHWEHARZ(ZE-NF:
) o

ESEXRS  RHENARNEAER

BRRMERKEEN  AFEERARFEH
B ARBWEBITEMEAEEER
HEMALNDESHENBREELPE
FEAERCEERS - ZHMNER -

HREREEAS
REBRRITESIHEREEAE -
A TRENHSFEHNE (a)18



12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(CONT'D)

(g) Five highest paid individuals

(9

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include four (2019:
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid or
payable to the five highest paid individual during the

year are as follows:

Salaries and allowances

HrE MR

Pension costs — defined contribution B{k& A& — REHEE 2

plans

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

FrENAE B (BT)

2,500,001 & 7T = 3,000,000 & 7T
3,000,001 & T = 3,500,000 8 7T
3,500,001 & 7T & 4,000,000 /& 7T
4,000,001 & 7T & 4,500,000 /& 7T
5,000,001 & 7T £ 5,500,000 /& 7T

12 EE2RANERESRIAERSFM
AL @)

EEREHMAL
FRATEEzREEESFHALEED
(ZB-NF ONES: REME
EFER EXI R 2R - FREX
NREZNTREERSFHMA L 25 M
LU

2020 2019
—g-%F e
HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FiB

15,840 18,820

72 72

15,912 18,892
&N F 5L T 6 -

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019
—g-%f —E-nE
3 1
- 2
1 —_
1 1

|
—_

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of
the Group is 25% (2019: 25%) for the year.

13

Current tax BT IR
Hong Kong profits tax EBREHR
PRC enterprise income tax Bl TS EL

Under/(over) provision in prior years AERETRGRERME)

Total current tax BIEABi TR AR R
Deferred taxation (note 26) IEFE T (B ek 26)
Income tax expense FRSHB X

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax
rates in the region in which the Group operates as follows:

e MR

PGB <

EBRER T URF E 5 ERERERIRB R
16.5% (ZZF— N : 16.5%) iR &EE - R
FE  AEETREMELRANERRESR25%
(ZZE—NF 1 25%) °

2020 2019
—E-®F —E-hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHx F

7,588 5,511

11 236
86 (248)

7,685 5,499

(2,622) (1,235)

5,063 4,264

REBEBEBRBIERNER 2 IR E KA
EEEERMENBE2HEMAE 2ERHE
ZEFEWMT

Profit before income tax KRPr S B A& R

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates BRI EEAE A/
applicable to profits in the AU B ERGT ERIBLIE
respective region

Effect of tax reduction in current year REEHEROHNTE

Under/(over) provision in prior years AFEFHET R (BERE)

Income not subject to tax BEZRBBA

Expenses not deductible for tax AR X
purposes

Utilisation of previously unrecognised BB RERHIBEE
tax losses

Unrecognised tax losses RIEABIEEE

Tax expense for the year FEERERX

Group
rEE
2020 2019
=EC-RF =F-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
16,389 19,349
2,029 3,055
(200) (220)
86 (248)
(22) (14)
708 425
(119) (740)
2,581 2,006
5,063 4,264

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 12.4% (2019:
16.0%). The increase is caused by a change in the
profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective
regions.
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14 DIVIDENDS 14 RKRE

C))

(b)

Dividends declared and paid during the year (a) REFEEMRIKEZRE
2020 2019
b Sy —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FiExT
Final dividend in respect of 2019 of Z—Z—hExRKHEREER .58
HK1.5 cents (2019: in respect of (ZBE—h&E ZB—N\&E2
2018 of HK2.5 cents) per share REREGRKR2.5%4L) 9,009 15,015
Interim dividend in respect of 2020 of —ZE=FF > hEIR EFKR 2.5 81
HK2.5 cent (2019: in respect of (ZB—h&E ZB—h&E2
2019 of HK1 cent) per share FHIR SR 1EAL) 6,006 6,006
15,015 21,021
Dividends for the year (b) FERE
2020 2019
—EBBHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FExT
Interim dividend of HK1 cent PHIRE SR 1B
(2019: HK1 cent) per share (ZZF—NIF 18 6,006 6,006
Proposed final dividend of BRASRESR 0.5
HKO0.5 cent (2019: HK1.5 cents) (ZZ—hF 1 1.584)
per share (note) (Ff=E) 3,003 9,009
9,009 15,015
Note: Bt E -
Final dividends have been proposed by the directors after the EENREAREBRERIRE - ZHIRRE

reporting date. The proposed dividends, subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, are not reflected
as dividend payable as at 31 March 2020.

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR

(BEERRNERRFBEE RS LHE) W8 R
ARZE-EF=A=1+—-HZERKRE -
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15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15

(@

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity KRB ABEERGER
owners of the Company

Number of ordinary shares ERTERRRE(TR)

in issue (thousands)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2020 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares issued (2019: same).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

% a R
(a) EXK

BREFEFIRERDAMEERM
BERBRAFENCBITEBRREGTE -

2020 2019
—E=FF =F-NF
HK$’000 HK$000
TET Tz
11,326 15,085
600,600 600,600

(b) #F

HREECRTEEHELER - HE
ECRCEF-A=T-RLFEZS
REHEENESRENEZNERD(=F

—hE HEE) -



Net book value

At 1 April 2018
Additions

Disposal
Depreciation (note 9)
Revaluation
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2019
Change in accounting
policy (note 2.1.1)

Restated opening net
book amount

Additions

Disposal

Depreciation (note 9)

Revaluation

Exchange difference

At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019

Valuation

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net book value

At 31 March 2020

Valuation

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net book value

REFE
RZZ-N\FEA-A
HE

HE

& (W9)

B

ERZE

R=F-NEZA=1-H
SBRED (Hiz211)

BENFREFE

HE

HE

& (Wi9)
B
ERZE

R=2=-FF=/=t-A

RZB-NEZR=+-H
fhiE

B

ZiiE

REFE
R-BE-ZE=A=1-H
ftfE

A
ZitiE

REFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 Y% - BEKRRE
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings Leasehold fixtures and Motor

(note)  improvements equipment vehicles Total

BEL HE G- %E
R#F (H) NEEE e "E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$§'000 HK$000
TERL ThRL THRL THRL TER
173,600 15,213 710 212 189,735
- 16,953 1,171 601 18,725
- - (18) (45) (63)
(5,835) (6,684) (344) (223) (13,086)
(465) - - - (465)
- (1) ) (5) (124)
167,300 25,371 1,511 540 194,722
- (1,797) - - (1,797)
167,300 23,574 1,511 540 192,925
- 5,063 902 - 5,965
- (114) (26) - (140)
(5,850) (7,801) (444) (218) (14,313)
(9,150) - - - (9,150)
- (179) (48) 3) (230)
152,300 20,543 1,895 319 175,057
167,300 - - - 167,300
- 94,088 20,379 1,234 115,701
- (68,717) (18,868) (694) (88,279)
167,300 25,371 1,511 540 194,722
152,300 - - - 152,300
- 80,444 20,565 1,224 102,233
- (59,901) (18,670) (905) (79,476)
152,300 20,543 1,895 319 175,057

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTD)

Note:

If leasehold land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the
amounts would be as follows:

Cost R
Accumulated depreciation ESgiE =
Net book amount BRERE

Bank borrowings are secured by the leasehold land and buildings in Hong
Kong with a total carrying amount of HK$94,200,000 (2019:
HK$103,200,000) (note 24).

The following table analyses the leasehold land and
buildings carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Description
L

As at 31 March 2020 R-E-EF=A=+—H
Recurring fair value
measurements
— Leasehold land and buildings — &+ RkEF

REMEAARENE

As at 31 March 2019 R=-Z-—NF=A=+—8H

Recurring fair value REMEAREFE
measurements

— Leasehold land and buildings — &t REF

Note: For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or
liability are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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16 Y% BEKRRE @

BiEE

HEELREFDRELRAEEZY] > FEEEM
T

2020 2019
—BoBE —Z2-h%E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER Fi#
34,804 34,804
(7,782) (7,086)
27,022 27,718

$RAT 15 TN LA B BR T {8 5 94,200,000 8 T (=2 — L F :
103,200,00058 7T) 2 & B HE - tth RIEF/EE T (M s
24)

FRUMGEAEDFRAAENEZAE L8R
e

Fair value measurements using
RATHSEZAARBENE

Quoted

prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other unobservable
identical observable inputs
assets inputs (Level 3)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (note)
HEEEZ ERHM ERFH
ERMISHE UBRRHARE BEm A
(F—F8) (B=fE) (%B=RE) M)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FiET FET FHET
- - 152,300
- — 167,300

ME: MEZERTZAAEFEMS  EEREEZ
MABBYFATEETSBE (TTHER
ABUE) BEM -



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTD) 16 1% - B RFRME @)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AEEZBEARERERAAEBR2HE
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of BeEARBEREBHER  BRAEEAAERE
the event or change in circumstances that caused the BrBAREL -FRN F—B F-EBRE
transfer. There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 ZEZEAMER o

during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant MAERTABERABB(E=E) 2D RE
unobservable inputs (Level 3) E

Leasehold land and buildings

HETHRETF
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Fi&x
Opening balance FEEe 167,300 173,600
Depreciation e (5,850) (5,835)
Deficit on revaluation recognised in REMEZEKERRAZEGLRT
other comprehensive income (9,150) (465)
Closing balance FREH 152,300 167,300

BBTERERATD-E-SEER 157



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTD)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were valued at 31
March 2020 by an independent professionally qualified
valuer, Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of the
leasehold land and buildings valued.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to
the board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the review team and the
valuer annually.

Level 3 fair values of leasehold land and buildings have
been derived using the direct comparison approach, which
basically uses the comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market to derive the fair value of
the properties. Sale prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such
as time of transactions, property size and location. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is the market
unit rate.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
THBERAYE TRBRBABBEE

Market unit rate
MZEEER
of saleable area

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

16 Y% - BEKXME @

FEEZHERE
FEECHET W RETHE TSRS ERM
EMERENHMTAERARR-ZE-2F=
B=1+—RE  WHEMFEHBEITESE
B BRAGREEIHMREFHREHRER
2 EPEAT (A

REBMBIEE -—ZBMBRE B NERS
MALERMTETAEZEE - ZEREERE
EEER - hEBEREFEGEM W ER
RRER -

HELTHRBFcEZBARENFEREEL
BUEBH - EELBUE-—RABHEETS LA
ERzUELEHEERZEBMELAE -
MHETELEMECEBCARSZER - U
EHERMESTIERH CZRFEHAZ - 1L
HEEZRERBGAHBRAHEEER -

FRNRAEATIBRGARE (F=F) 22
REFEBZER

Relationship of unobservable
inputs of fair value
DRAEMSRFTEREAHIE 2BR

Office: HK$19,000 to HK$19,200 (2019: The higher the market unit rate, the
HK$20,800 to HK$ 20,900) per square feet higher the fair value

TMEEERHEE  AAEME

WMAE BEFAEESFHR19,000/% T E 19,200

BT (ZZ— N5 1 20,8008 T ZE 20,9008 7T)

Shop: HK$75,500 (2019: HK$85,000) per

square feet of saleable area

B EREESTAR755008T(ZE—NE !

85,0008 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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17 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group
is a lessee.

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

(b)

of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following balances relating to the leases:

Right-of-use assets

Properties

Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current

EREEE
LS

HERE

2=
AL

JERED

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 March 2020 amounted to HK$19,505,000.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
shows the following amounts relating to the leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets (note 9)

Expenses relating to short-term leases (note 9) HRIEHHEE 2 BIx (FizE9)

Interest expense (note 10)

17

HE

AU RHAKEEREBAZHEES -

(@)

(b)

REEHMBRNRAERI 2EHE

FEMBRRARIRUTREEEEZ
35

As at

BZE
31 March 2020 1 April 2019
—EBCEF —E-AF
=A=+—H mA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
72,188 116,516
33,617 37,965
43,929 80,018
77,546 117,983

BE-Z-_ZEF=-A=+—HLEEE"
REFEHEEE19,505,0008 7T °

REE2HBBERABIAZER

FEEAWREXRIRUTHEESEZ
S5

2020
—ECEF
HK$’000
FRET

EREEEZITEMX (HEE9)

F SR (MEE10)

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31
March 2020 amounted to HK$43,872,000.

41,551
8,572
4,597

BE-Z-EF=ZA=+—-HLHFE"
HEZRRERE 5 43,872,0008 7T ©

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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17 LEASES (conTD)

18

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for
The Group leases various properties including retail
shops, warehouse and office premises. The lease
terms are between one and four years, and the
majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end
of the lease period at market rate.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1 April REA—B

Fair value loss recognised in EERBERAAEEE
the profit or loss

At 31 March R=B=+—H

The fair value loss on investment properties is included in
“Other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (note 7).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

17 #HE @
(c) ZAEBMAEIHREAESR

FEBHEAZENE  ETEEZTERE
W oERRBTFEYE -HHENF-=
ME . AR BE RSN ERER
BEmEEE -

HBRENEERES  YEERERE
AR B AR - AE B M B A e A0 A4
Lt ERHBEARB2HEEEFZ
HIRREZRERID o

18 REWZF

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
34,700 36,100
(3,100) (1,400)
31,600 34,700

REMENAAEBRDFAREZERER
mEy [ (B8), W - FEEI(MEE7) -



18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTD)

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs:

18 BREWMH @)
BEEREATTBEEGARENA BT
HER

Fair value measurements using
RATHSE 2 AABENE

Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
B HEEE ERHM BEX
ZERT S AR FABER
HE BWASE BABE
(8—18) (8=FE) (B=F8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FiExT
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-EF=H=+—H
Recurring fair value KEMHARETE
measurements
— Investment properties — REYE - - 31,600
As at 31 March 2019 R-B-NF=A=+—H
Recurring fair value KEMHARETE
measurements
— Investment properties — REYE - - 34,700

As at 31 March 2020, valuations were undertaken by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited. The valuation processes are the same
as the revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for
own use (note 16).

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs
THRE@AHE

Range of unobservable inputs
FTAEERARBEE

Market unit rate

MSEER feet of saleable area

EHAEBEEFAHRI92008 T(=ZF — N F:

21,1008 %)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques used
during the year.

HK$19,200 (2019:HK$21,100)per square

R-ZZE-EHF=ZA=+—-R hEIEIIHEB
VEXLSERGEMITERENFMITERD
AT - HEBRENMSEEANEET MR
BF 2 EEAAE (FEE16) °

FRAFNRAEATUERBGARE (F=8) 22
REFEZER

Relationship of unobservable
inputs of fair value
DAEMSRITERBARE 2BR

The higher the market unit rate, the

higher the fair value
THEEENE  AAENS

FREEFERESZD -

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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19

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2020:

Name of subsidiary
HEAREE

Accord Sky Limited
Accord Sky Limited

Asia Bon Company Limited

ER(EN BEERERAR

Asia Richly Limited
SNEEARAE

Bonco Ironmongery Limited
RELEENERLA
Cypress Design Limited
RERTERAT

D.LY. Limited

D.LY. Limited

E. Bon Building Materials
Company Limited

BATRENHERAT
H20 (Pro) Limited
KZRERRE

Joint Oriental Limited
Joint Oriental Limited
Kitchen (Pro) Limited
B2 fRRRAR

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited

*E (BR)ARAT

Massford (Shanghai) Limited*

XE(L8)12ERLT

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
/R

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
2

Hong Kong
£

Hong Kong
&R
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
&2
Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
3
PRC

FE

Particulars of
issued

share capital
BRIRARE

1,000,000 ordinary shares
1,000,000 R BB R

100 ordinary shares
100REBR

1 ordinary share
1REBR

10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 REER

1 ordinary share
1REBR

2 ordinary shares
2REBR

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 REBR

2 ordinary shares
2REBR

1 ordinary share
1REBR

1,000 ordinary shares
1,000 R EER

10,000 ordinary shares

10,000 REER

US$250,000

250,000% 7T

Legal structure
EERR

Company with limited liabilities

BRELLA

Company with limited liabilities
BRELLR

Company with limited liabilities
BREEAT

Company with limited liabilities
BRELLT
Company with limited liabilities
ARERAT
Company with limited liabilities
BRERAT

Company with limited liabilities

ARERAT
Company with limited liabilities
ERELRT
Company with limited liabilities
BREELT
Company with limited liabilities
BRELLT

Company with limited liabilities

ARELLA

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

BHERE

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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BB WK

LR NIE £

UTBR=B=BE=A=+-A2ZEWE
ARHE :

Principal activities
and place of operation
TEXBRERLE

Equity interest held
ikl ey 3
2020

bt St 22

2019
—E-RE

Retail sales of kitchen collections and fumiture
through retail shops in Hong Kong
BPEZEENEATEHERERBERER

100% 100%

100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong

REBENERE
100%

100%  Property holding in Hong Kong

REEENFER

100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware in Hong Kong

REBENRHEERENE

100% - Consulting services for interior design and
fitting out works

ERRTREB IR FARY

100% 100%  Handling of human resources planning and
development activities of the Group

REAEEADERRIRREZE

100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections in
Hong Kong

REBEORHEREREREARR

100% 100%  Importing and sale of bathroom collections
in Hong Kong

REBENREEHARE

100% 100%  Handling of human resources planning
and development activities of the Group

REASEANERRAREREE

100% 100%  Importing, sale and installation of kitchen
collections in Hong Kong

REBED  HERZRBER

100% 100%  Supply of architectural builders’ hardware and
bathroom collections for property
development in Hong Kong

REEHERZRER
EARBTIXRRER

100% 100%  Supplying architectural builders’ hardware
and bathroom collections for property
development in Shanghai

RESHEREIER
EARBETIXRRER



19 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (conTD)

*

Name of subsidiary

HWEAREE

Oriental Forward Limited
REKEARA

Oriental Longway Limited
RAREERLT

Right Century Limited

BHERAR

Shanghai Tech Pro International

Trading Company Limited*

LESREREZBRAT

Shanghai Techpro Interior
Decoration Company Limited*

LEBRENEHERAT
Sunny Building and Decoration
Materials Company Limited

FHEGHALETAARAR

Techpro Trading Limited
BRENESERAA
VIA (Shanghai) Limited*

B (LE) ZABEERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

i/ RS

Hong Kong
Y

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
i

PRC

P

PRC
HE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
BB
PRC

ik

Particulars of
issued
share capital

BRREKFHE

1 ordinary share
1REBR

1 ordinary share

1REBR

1,000 ordinary shares

1,000 REBR

US$300,000

300,000 %7

RMBS,000,000

AR#5,000,0007C

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 REBR

1,000 ordinary shares
1,000 REBR
US$250,000

250,000% T

Legal structure

EEER

Company with limited liabilities
BRERAA

Company with limited liabilities
BRERLH

Company with limited liabilities

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

BOHELE

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

ROELE

Company with limited liabilities

BRERLA

Company with limited liabilities
BREERT
Wholly foreign owned enterprise

RERE

The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent
management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these
subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

19 MiEA R @)

Principal activities
and place of operation

E2:3 3 LS

Equity interest held
FisRAER

2020

t- mt- 23

2019
“2-0F
100%

100%  Property holding in Hong Kong

RERIENERE
100%

100%  Property holding in Hong Kong

RERENERE

100% 100%  Retail sales of bathroom accessories and
decoration materials through retail shops in
Hong Kong

BRTERNERTEHEANRE
Rt

100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural builders
hardware and bathroom collections in
the PRC

RhEEOREEREREREARE

100% 100%  Undertaking interior decoration and project
management for property development in
the PRC

RAERHERRTR
EEEE T SRIES

100% 100%  Retail sales of architectural builders hardware
and bathroom collections through retail
shops in Hong Kong

BRTEENEATEHERERE
REARE

100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural
builders hardware

ENRHEERERE

100% 100%  Importing and sale of bathroom, fumiture and
kitchen collections in Shanghai

RESENREEEE  BARERR

* HRERETHEARLESLRIER M
ERNERHEEBRBI X ERWEBLEZ -

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

20 INVENTORIES 20 78
2020 2019
—BE-EF ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Finished goods SRS 144,870 169,546
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BARBAXATATHERR | 2 FEHEKR
in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$285,049,000 (2019: 285,049,000 7t ( =& — 7L F : 304,992,000
HK$304,992,000). BIT) ©
As at 31 March 2020, finished goods with cost of R-ZEBE-_EF=A=+—-—H BEBEEXM
HK$26,916,000 (2019: HK$33,326,000) were considered as 2 B R 526,916,000 (=& — A F:
obsolete. 33,326,0005&7T) °
The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence BREERESIHNOT
is as follows:
2020 2019
b b 1 ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FENEE 33,326 35,813
Reversal of provision for inventory BREEFERERD
obsolescence (6,245) (2,131)
Exchange difference ELER (165) (356)
Balance at end of the year FERER 26,916 33,326
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21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND CONTRACT ASSETS

Details of the trade, retention, other receivables and contract
assets as at 31 March 2020 are listed below:

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Retention receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
retention receivables

Contract assets
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Less: non-current portion
Retention receivables
Deposits and prepayments

Current portion

FE W BR X
AR RE R

FE WL 4R B 7R
B ERRERRERE

BREE

21 BUERRR - BUREB R - B

RERENEE

REZZCEF=ZA=1+-HZBERNX - BY
REXR - RN RSNEEER T ¢

Hitp R - RERFANRK

B IRV
FE W 4R B2 3R
BERAMK

BNER

All non-current receivables are due within five years from

the end of the respective reporting dates.

2020 2019
—E-%%F —E-hfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
Fix Figx
138,986 112,985
(626) (630)
138,360 112,355
3,478 3,790
(252) (269)
141,586 115,876
3,629 3,677
18,399 22,681
163,614 142,234
(779) (3,477)
(5,384) (10,919)
157,451 127,838

FREREEE D 2 BUCK SN ERE R R

FREH -

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND CONTRACT ASSETS (ConTD)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting
date by invoice date is as follows:

1-90 days 1E90K
91-365 days 91 E 365K
Over 365 days #BiB 365 K

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30
to 90 days, while some customers are granted an extended
credit period of up to 120 days.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a life time
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets. Information about the
impairment of these receivables and the Group’s exposure
to credit risk is set out in note 3.1(c).

The movement in the provision of impairment for doubtful
debts is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year FEE
Exchange difference ERER
Balance at end of the year FRER

As at 31 March 2020, provision of impairment for doubtful
debt of HK$878,000 (2019: HK$899,000) is recognised in
respect of customers that were in delinquency of payments,
in which the directors are of the opinion that whole
outstanding amount is expected not to be recovered.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

FEUWERR - EUWIREBRX - HAibFEWR
RREHNEE @

FEW BRI AR E B 2 iRl (B RAFE) 247
LU

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT FHET
75,183 78,091
50,627 21,931
13,176 12,963
138,986 112,985

REEZHEFEHRARBIHBIOEWNKX M
BOEFHNEEMIREREZERZ 120K °

REEEE BB I RS RIS o SRR (L AT
EENFERE  FEBRERMARYRMN
FEVRBRUARGHNEEZHHENBER

- FEZERWIAERERFAEBEERAR

HEREHAMEES1(c) °
RRBEREEBOT :

2020 2019

—EEF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FiE T

899 923

(21) (24)

878 899

RZZBZZRFE=ZA=+—-0 BEFEXER
MERNRREEREARB78,000BT(=F

— L5 1 899,000587T) - EEFEH

TR BEE R -

EEZRUEN



21

22

TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND CONTRACT ASSETS (ConTD)

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying values of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values (2019: same).

Details of contract assets are as follows:

Contract assets related to contract work BEEHIRHNAENEE

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from
contract work when revenue recognised exceeds the
amount billed to the customer.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand RITEAREFERS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$4,429,000 (2019: HK$5,118,000) are
deposited with banks in the PRC, where the remittance of
funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
0.16% (2019: 0.11%) per annum as at 31 March 2020.

21

22

FEHQEE* PR IR B K~ HAb B IR
I:IIIIJ é?(%ﬁ)

RZZBZZ2F=ZA=1+—-0 ' BUERIKREM
Rz RAEERE N RERE (ZE-NF
HE) e

AREERENT :
2020 2019
—g-%f —E-hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHx FHx
3,629 3,677

BHEERRCRANEBEBATFRHRE

MEeBmELNRBEESHE -
RekALEEY
2020 2019
e =F-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TH#R
83,434 66,365

RZBE-EBF=A=+—8 > AEEZBER
$R 1T 45 82 94,429,000 T(=F — AL F:
5,118,000/ 7T) EFEAHRE Z#R1T  ERZ I
EMRBIE S o

RZZBEZZTE=A=+—8  EHPRTER=Z
BERENMEE0.16% (ZZ—NE 1 0.11%) °

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 23 BNEIREMEMRERENEE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2020 2019

—EIEF —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FET

Trade payables FETBREER 22,815 27,306
Accrued charges and other payables I ERREMENR 11,729 11,349
Contract liabilities e h=K 77,189 54,118
111,733 92,773

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting

A BRANIRE B 2Rk (ABRREHFE) 2

date by invoice date is as follows: mT
2020 2019
—EDEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
0-90 days 0Z 90X 19,665 26,696
91-365 days 91ZE 365Kk 2,567 605
Over 365 days BB 365K 583 5
22,815 27,306

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2019: same).

RIEZERF=ZRA=+—-R BARIKRAEM
AR EEEEAEAABERE (ZE-NEF

HERE) °

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: EHNEEHBUT
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-AEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Contract liabilities for unsatisfied REBHETEHNER

performance obligations 77,189 54,118
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23

24

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTD)

Contract liabilities consist of consideration received (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer for
unsatisfied performance obligations.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to
carried-forward contract liabilities:

23

BNRRREMCENRRENERS

(%)

BHEERERRBEVNERCHEFRE(R
IMLESHR) -

TRERREHGHEFERENAREHEE
BRNSEE

2020 2019

e e =F-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TR

Revenue recognised that was included 3t AENENEEEGHHERI WS

in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year

BORROWINGS
Current BN HA
Secured BiEH
— Bank loans —RITER
Unsecured IR IR
— Trust receipt loans — EREBIEER
— Bank loans —RITER

Trust receipt loans are mainly denominated in HK$ or Euro.
All bank loans are denominated in HK$.

24

54,011 50,104
(N
2020 2019
—ECERF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
1,647 3,018
7,206 23,242
1,803 10,327
10,656 36,587
ERBBERZAEERRBAREE - TF

ZHEE
RITERZEEERRBT -

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR

169



24 BORROWINGS (conTD)

At 31 March 2020, the Group’s borrowings were repayable
as follows:

Within one year
In the second year
In the third to fifth year

—ER
EFR
E=FZFRFRN

Bank borrowings of HK$1,647,000 (2019: HK$3,018,000)
are secured by leasehold land and buildings of the Group of
HK$94,200,000 (2019: HK$103,200,000) (note 16).

The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at floating
rates, equals their carrying amounts.

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Floating rate:
— Expiring within one year

SFEIFIER
— —FRIH

The effective interest rate is 3.9% (2019: 2.7%) for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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&5 (#)

R-ZZEZBHF=ZA=+—-HB XEEAEEZ

ERWT

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-AEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
5,479 34,942
4,939 1,373
238 272
10,656 36,587

R 17 18 1,647,000 T( = T — 1L F:
3,018,000 % 7T ) 2 LA 55 B % £ 94,200,000 &
JT(=Z— % 103,200,000 7)) 2FHEL
AR TR (BERE 16) ©

MEZBFNRZ2ER 2RI A ELEEEREE -

REBEUTRBAZRETHE

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
214,297 221,329

BE-_ZE-EF=-A=+—-—HLEEZERF
EHB9% (ZE—NF 127%) °



25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

25 {THEERIA

2020 2019
—EEF —E-hF
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BE aE &E afE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FHERT FEx FHET TET
Not qualified for hedge THEEHETTER
accounting
Foreign exchange forward INEREIEH
contract, at market value =m{E (M)
(note) - (807) - (576)
Note: M -

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Sell USD for Euro BHETLEE
Sell HKD for Euro HEEBTHEBE

REBZZER-Z-AFZA=+—-HERTEZS

EEHENZERASLENT :
2020 2019
—s-%F —E-nF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FH
- 17,627
34,022 -
34,022 17,627

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities

ELEFEHERE

EEFREHAE

The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration

26 IEEFTEH

e MR

2020 2019
—g-%5 —E-hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH Fit
6,458 4,767
(19,560) (21,958)
(13,102) (17,191)

REZBEMBRB ADEER NI HAERA
REEZELEMEHREERGERBAZEHN

the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, T
are as follows:
Deferred income tax assets BELEREHEE
Tax losses Decelerated tax depreciation Provision Total
REES HERERE BE o
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
SRSRF BN SECEF SRR SESRF O SEAF SRSRF SENR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER Thn TR TEn THER TEx THER Fhr
At 1 April REA—H 2,299 1,537 5,783 4,606 1,172 1,893 9,254 8,036
Credited/(charged) to 3t A /(31H)1B%
profit or loss 1,868 762 1,406 1,177 (594) (625) 2,680 1,314
Exchange difference ERZZE - - - - (42) (96) (42) (96)
At 31 March R=ZB=1+-H 4,167 2,299 7,189 5,783 536 1,172 11,892 9,254
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26 DEFERRED TAXATION (conTD) 26 EFEFTEH (@)
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEFMEHAE
Revaluation of properties Accelerated tax depreciation Total
NEER MEBHENE @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBIEF “Z-nf CZBIBF ZE-hE 0 ZEIEF ZE-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Thn Tin TEn Thn Thn Tihn
At 1 April WEA-H 26,130 26,207 315 236 26,445 26,443
Credited to other FARMREKRE
comprehensive income (1,509) (77) - - (1,509) (77)
Charged to profit or loss fgEs - - 58 79 58 79
At 31 March R=B=1-8 24,621 26,130 373 315 24,994 26,445

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has not recognised
deferred income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of HK$19,707,000 (2019: HK$15,463,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdictions and entities. These tax losses utilisation will
expire as follows:

In the first to fifth year inclusive

No expiry date WEEIE A

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$872,000 as at 31
March 2020 (2019: HK$851,000) have not been recognised
for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries.
Unremitted earnings totalled HK$17,441,000 at 31 March
2020 (2019: HK$17,027,000), and the Group does not
intend to remit these unremitted earnings from the relevant
subsidiaries to the Company in the foreseeable future.

E-—FEELFHN(BEEERF)

RIZB-EF=A=1+—8 > xEENKRER
BRERSTHIBEE 19,707,000 8T (== —N
F 115,463,000/ T) 2IEEFMBHEE - It
TDHRERERSIAEERMEREEM
= RRA KA REES SRR A LUK S5 818
BiE - ZEHREFEZIHANT

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FERT

17,980 15,463

1,727 -

19,707 15,463
REZBZERF=ZA=+—-R  LENNBELH

RIE BT A 2 FEINB R HAbF B M2 B L Fr
BB & E872,000/8 5t (= F — L F : 851,000
BRL)  RZEZZEF=ZFA=+—H KEZR
F & £ 517,441,0008 T(=ZF — h F:
17,027,0008 T) R AN KB I M|ITE R T B &
REARQAGEENB AR ZKRERF o

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 B
2020 2019
St 3.3 “Z-hE
Number of Number of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$000
RAEE TR RIPEE THET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each ~ SREE0.1 BT 2 EBR
At 1 April and 31 March REE-BR=R=+-H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREELM:
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each ~ GREE0.1 B2 EER
At 1 April and 31 March RMWA—-BR=R=1+—H 600,600,000 60,060 600,600,000 60,060
28 RESERVES 28 f#fE

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 100 and 101.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to
appropriate certain percentage of their profits after tax to the
respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions
as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory
reserve may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of the group companies acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22
March 2000, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made
by the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the
Company before the group reorganisation on 22 March
2000.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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EEE

BZHEREBRRARRS  ARATAETHWEAR
AREBZEERBEHNR  SERBRHERE
FERETEDL - RBBBETERG &
TR ZEERBTEETENBAREE
ZEMEERAESHREREERL -

SOt

AEEZAHHERBEER 2 FEEERER=
TETE-A-+-AEESATEA) K
BEEREADEEZROFEEZEE It
EERBRERRAATDBTREG 2EE

B
EXARBER-ZEZERF-A-T-HEEE
HAERNRREARAETHEARZHER
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29 BEREER
(a) Cash flows from operating activities (a) RETBELEZHLERE
2020 2019
ZEBIEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Profit before income tax FR 88 A Fl 16,389 19,349
Adjustments for: BTHEIEFE
Finance costs B R R 5,895 1,033
Finance income B (136) (76)
Fair value loss on investment REVEIREERE
properties 3,100 1,400
Reversal of provision for inventory  BIEFEEERD
obsolescence (6,245) (2,131)
Loss on disposal of property, plant  HE&EY% - BMERRHEZEE
and equipment 31 8
Loss on disposal of right-of-use HEFAEEEZESR
assets 1,647 —
Loss on forward contracts ERANER 1,491 2,771
Depreciation of property, plantand #% BHERBEITE
equipment 14,313 13,086
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  EHEEERE 41,551 -
Operating profit before working LB SR~ ST
capital changes 78,036 35,440
Inventories =78 30,537 9,981
Trade, retention and other receivables FEUR B « FEUWR B8 3k I H th FE Uk 5k (21,928) 34,428
Contract assets aREE (85) (2,432)
Trade and other payables and BEARRAREMENRREE
provision 549 (9,972)
Contract liabilities EHEE 23,071 (4,361)
Decrease in restricted cash ZIR&IIRERE - 3,008
Cash generated from operations REFEEZRS 110,180 66,092

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conTD) 29 BHEREBER @)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEVE BERIBZAENE
equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds F%Afﬁémz%@w  HEVE - BE
from disposal of property, plant and equipment RFBBZFISHIAEHE
comprise:
2020 2019
b 35 —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Net book amount (note 16) BREVEE (KiEE 16) 140 63
Loss on disposal of property, HEVE BER
plant and equipment (note 7) BE2EE (M) (31) (8)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEW% BERREZAERE

plant and equipment 109 55
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial (c) RMETHELENESEHR
activities

Liabilities from financing activities

MEETEBzEE
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
RN HEAE #et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T F&T F#&T
At 1 April 2018 R=-B-NEMAE—AH 41,382 - 41,382
Cash flows HeRhE (4,795) - (4,795)
At 31 March 2019 R-B-hE=ZHA=+—8 36,587 - 36,587
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RANE BT ERREE 1658 - 117,983 117,983
At 1 April 2019 R=-Z—AFWMA—A 36,587 117,983 154,570
Cash flows HeRhE (25,931) (39,275) (65,206)
Non-cash movement FESTHE - (1,162) (1,162)
At 31 March 2020 R-E-ZHE=F=+—8 10,656 77,546 88,202
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30 COMMITMENTS

C))

(b)

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had the following
capital commitments not provided for:

Contracted but not provided for:

Property, plant and equipment

Operating lease commitments

30 EiE

(a) EFEE

R-ZZBZEF=ZA=+—-H ' Ar&EEE

LU REHR B BRI B AN EIE

ERTAERETIRERE -
M3 - BB RRIE

2020 2019
—g-%F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FiB

- 765

(b) REHEARE

(i) Operating lease commitments — group (0

company as lessee

The Group leases various office premises under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements.
From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised
right-of-use assets for these leases, except for
short-term leases, see note 17 for further

information.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land

and buildings as follows:

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

More than five years

—FR

ZREF

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR

E_FEFLFN(BREREMSF)

REHERE — KERAEDEK

HA

REBRE T TR 2 KEHE W
ZHAETEFEYX-B=F
—hEmA-RE REHHEE
o AEBEEMZEHERRER
BEE ARE-—SERBRWE
17 »

RZB-hF=ZA=+—-HB &
ERBETAHE L REFEE
BEMRREZ A 2 REBEMNK
BT -

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FExT

50,410
87,750

138,160
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

30 COMMITMENTS (conTD) 30 FEIE @)
(b) Operating lease commitments (cont’d) (b) R&HEAEE)
(ii) Operating lease commitments — group (i) HREHERE — FELAAERL
company as lessor HA
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had future R=ZZZZBF=ZR=+—-8 &K
aggregate minimum lease receivable under non- BRETAIHE 2 REMELEER
cancellable operating leases in respect of EmMRARRENSEEENHERE
investment properties as follows: wmE
2020 2019
b 35 —E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
Within one year —£R 390 936
In the second to fifth year inclusive £E-FZ%R TR (BIEFERME) - 390
390 1,326
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 FHAREE
As at 31 March 2020, performance bonds of approximately R-ZZBZZEF=ZR=+—H AEECARF
HK$31,735,000 (2019: HK$20,044,000) have been issued B H B AR E 431,735,000 8 T (ZFE— N F -
by the Group to customers as security of contracts. 20,044,000 8 T) EREHNIER -
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

(a)

(b)

32

BEEALXRS

BRESUBRRAKRE XS, AR - BA
FEA AEEBTHEBEATETUTRS

Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2020 2019
BEALTEAR XEME gt 322 —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FiExT
A company under common Lease payments paid to Negotiator
control of certain directors Consultants Limited (“NCL”)
of the Company (note) % {4F Negotiator Consultants Limited
—BERAARE TESHEEH (TNCLD) 2 HERFK
2 aE] (ffEE) 4,032 4,032
Note: NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE MizE : NCLAARDRESHIELE - HIFHEL
Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, 4+ HHEALERWERALEETERE
Kevin, directors of the Company, have beneficial interests. B2 AR MENREARERBREDE
The lease payments were paid in the normal course of REBENCLEMEE 2R ©
business at terms mutually agreed between the Group and
NCL.
Balances with related parties (b) BIEATZFEER
2020 2019
. —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Other receivables from Hft e i
— NCL — NCL 267 255

Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The carrying amounts approximate their
fair values (2019: same).

FEERRAEIKE REREARERER -
REEEAMNAERE (ZE-NF
@) °

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

As At 31 March 2020

ASSETS
Non-current asset
Interest in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables

Current income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Total equity and liabilities

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2020 and

were signed on its behalf.

aE
FRBEE
BB A B

RBEE

FE W Bf 8 1~ B FUOR
H b IR
RILEES G e
RERREEEY

S
KRB FEEEGERS

R
#E

REZBEE

&fE

RBRE
HAbFEAFR

FEAS B B 1~ B FUR

EEREEARE

TSE Sun Fat, Henry

L
Director
EE
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R-E-ZFEHFE=A=+-—H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & BB R M=

33 ARTMBIRRER RS

2020 2019
—E-SfF —E-hE

Note HK$°000 HK$’000
MiaE F#x Tt
_________ 90918 90,918
19,317 140,902

30 25

180 194

1,246 105

_________ 20773 141,226
111,691 232,144

60,060 60,060

(a) 49,483 64,305
________ 109,543 124,365

2,148 2,589

- 105,190

.....2148 107,779
111,691 232,144

RARHHRRARECKESER B _TF N
BZtHE#E AR THESARES -

TSE Sun Po, Tony
HEE
Director
-



33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONT'D)

Note:

(@)

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 April 2018 A=EB—NENA—H

Profit for the year
Dividends (note 14(a))

FEEF
RE (HiEE 14(a))

At 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2019
Profit for the year
Dividends (note 14(a))

FERF
B2 (FiEE 14(a))

At 31 March 2020

34 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a.

Impact of Coronavirus Disease 2019 outbreak
(“COVID-19 outbreak™)

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across many countries.
The pandemic has already caused disruptions to the
daily operations of the Group and this may potentially
affect the Group’s business and financial performance
in 2020. As of the date of the report, the overall
financial effect cannot be reliably and fully estimated
and are subject to further evaluation. The Group will
pay close attention to the development of the
COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.

Major transaction

On 29 May 2020, the Group has entered into a
preliminary agreement with an independent third party
of purchasing a property located at in Hong Kong at a
consideration of HK$68,500,000. On 23 June 2020,
the Group has entered into a formal agreement with
the vendor. As at the date of this report, the transaction
has not yet been completed.

R-ZB-NFEHA—H

33 ARATEBRRAKRREHEES @)

FfEE

(a)

R=B-HhF=ZA=+-—H

R-B-ZF=ZA=+-—H

RABHEZE
Retained
earnings Total
REEF st
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
65,189 65,189
20,137 20,137
(21,021) (21,021)
64,305 64,305
64,305 64,305
193 193
(15,015) (15,015)
49,483 49,483

34. MBEMIRRABESE

2019 BMmEEHER 2 E ([2019 Fk
RERERD
E-ZE-ZFEBEE019BRFSH
(2019 BMFESHIEE D % FTLER
—HERE—RYIFER RIEFEE o T
ARITEHAEBAEEEERTE
EMAREYERERE_S_SF 2%
BRMEEEZ BEAREAH > 22
BT EH AT EERMA > BAS
E—SFh o AEEKEYEE2019E
MESHEEBY WTGEHEAER
HBERRAREEEETE -

FEXRS
R-ZE-ZEFHEA=-+HhAB " xEEE
HBUE=FAIVERGE BXE
68,500,000 8 T EMNNEEBZ—EY
¥ -R-ZZE-ZFEEXAZ+=H&&
BOEBLZERNGE - RARE B
B ZRBEARTEK

MBITERERAA-Z-ZFFR
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Five-Year Financial Summary Z&HERE

Results
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five

ES
RAREE
FEAL &R

EERERE
REE
waes

MRER

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—R-BF —E-AF ZFE-N\F ZE-tF ZEF-RF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000  HKE000  HK$000
FET TR T T T
11,326 15,085 44,194 42,307 78,377
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—RIRF CE-NE ZR-N\F ZE2-tHF ZEB-RF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS$000
FET TBRT TET TBT TER
678,621 620,317 656,011 582,865 613,998
(228,444) (157,441) (176,800) (151,001) (189,163)
450,177 462,876 479,211 431,864 424,835

’QF&E% T i? BEERR -

years ended 31 March 2020 have been prepared on a $Z¥,€%,

consolidated basis.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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